
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

MEETING 

May 9 & 10, 2024 
Olympia, Washington 



 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

     
Alicia Levy 

Chair 

 
EX OFFICIOS 

 

 
Senator 
Steve Conway 

Julia Patterson 
Vice Chair 

 
 
 
 

Senator 
Jeff Holy 

Bud Sizemore 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Representative 
Shelley Kloba 

Sarah Lawson Anders Ibsen 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Representative 
Eric Robertson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
P.O. Box 42400 | Olympia,WA 98504-2400 
(360) 486-3469 | (800) 345-2529 | www.wsgc.wa.gov 

WAGamblingCommission  WAGambling 

wagambling 

http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/


 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest. 

 
Gambling Commission Meeting  

Thursday, May 9th, and Friday 10th, 2024 
You can attend the meeting virtually: TEAMS meeting link 

By phone: 360-726-3322, ID#228 690 389 791 # 
In-Person: Liquor Cannabis Board, 1025 Union Ave SE, Olympia, WA 

 
Public Comment can be provided by: 

• Written comment by email no later than close of business the day before the 
commission meeting to askus@wsgc.wa.gov   

• Virtually via Teams or 
• In person   

The Chair may take items out of order and the Commissioners may take action on business items. 
Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 9:30 am Call to Order Alicia Levy, Chair 
  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
  
 Tab 1  Proposed Tribal Gaming Compact Amendment Hearing     (Action) 

• Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians 
 

           The Honorable Chairman Eric White, Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians 
                                                                                                                                           Tina Griffin, Director 
                                                                                                                                      Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison 

Public Comment 
_____________________________________________________  
 
 *Tab 2 Consent agenda                                                                                                (Action) 
   March 14, 2024, Commission Meeting Minutes     Pg. 6 
   April 25, 2024, Commission Meeting Minutes           Pg. 9 
   New Licenses & Class III Gaming Employees                    Pg.  
    HBCR List                                                                                                              Pg.  
   Commission meeting locations for September and October         Pg.                            
    
Public Comment 

                                                                                               
Election of Officers                                                                                          (Action) 
• Chair 
• Vice Chair 

Public Comment 
 

mailto:https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MWNkYWE3NWYtNjMzMy00MGI4LWJjNTItOTE1ZTEzZGNlYjM5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2211d0e217-264e-400a-8ba0-57dcc127d72d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22a1facef7-8fd9-4a6e-b4e9-1fabd6fbe994%22%7d
mailto:askus@wsgc.wa.gov


May Meeting Motions 
May 9th and 10th, 2024 
Page 2 
 

  Director’s Report Tina Griffin, Director 
Public Comment 
_____________________________________________________ 
 
 Tab 3 Budget Update FY 2024     Pg.    

 Kriscinda Hansen, Chief Financial Officer 
_____________________________________________________  
  

 
RULE MAKING 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 
 

 
 *Tab 4 Rule Up for Discussion Only 

• Fee Increase Rules            
                          Adam Amorine, Interim Legal Manager, and Rules Coordinator 

Public Comment  
_____________________________________________________ 
 
 *Tab 5 Rule up for Final Action                                                           (Action) 

• Problem gambling signage     Pg.  
  

                       Adam Amorine, Interim Legal Manager, and Rules Coordinator 
Public Comment 

_____________________________________________________ 
  
 *Tab 6  Rule up for Final Action (Action) 

• Adjacent card rooms     Pg.  
  

                                            Adam Amorine, Interim Legal Manager, and Rules Coordinator 
Public Comment 

____________________________________________________________________  
 
 *Tab 7 Staff Initiate Rule Making                                                 (Action) 

• Polaris rules     Pg.  
  

  Adam Amorine, Interim Legal Manager, and Rules Coordinator 
     Public Comment 
_____________________________________________________ 
 
 *Tab 8 Staff Initiate Rule Making                                                    (Action) 

• Align license expiration dates     Pg.  
  

                                    Adam Amorine, Interim Legal Manager, and Rules Coordinator 
  Public Comment 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 

 



May Meeting Motions 
May 9th and 10th, 2024 
Page 3 
 

 Gambling Commission Meeting  
Friday, May 10th, 2024 

You can attend the meeting virtually: TEAMS meeting link 
By phone: 360-726-3322, ID#228 690 389 791 # 

In-Person: Liquor Cannabis Board, 1025 Union Ave SE, Olympia, WA 
 

 
RULE MAKING 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 
 

_____________________________________________________ 
 
 *Tab 9 Rule up for Discussion and Possible Filing                            (Action) 

• Minimum cash on hand     Pg.   
 

                           Adam Amorine, Interim Legal Manager, and Rules Coordinator 
Public Comment 

_____________________________________________________ 
  
 *Tab 10 Rule up for Discussion and Possible Filing                           (Action) 

• Firearms as a prize     Pg.  
  

                          Adam Amorine, Interim Legal Manager, and Rules Coordinator 
Public Comment 
____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________ 
 
 Tab 11 Agency Request Legislation    Pg.    

  
   Tina Griffin, Director 
_____________________________________________________ 
Public Comment 
_____________________________________________________ 
Adjourn 
_____________________________________________________ 
Updated: May 2, 2024 
Next Meeting:  July 11 & 12, 2024, LCB 
Public Meeting Accommodations: 
Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodation 
should be directed to askus@wsgc.wa.gov  

mailto:https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MWNkYWE3NWYtNjMzMy00MGI4LWJjNTItOTE1ZTEzZGNlYjM5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2211d0e217-264e-400a-8ba0-57dcc127d72d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22a1facef7-8fd9-4a6e-b4e9-1fabd6fbe994%22%7d
mailto:askus@wsgc.wa.gov


Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians

Washington State Gambling Commission
Hearing - Proposed Compact Amendments

May 9, 2024

The Honorable Eric White, Chair, Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians

Tina Griffin, Director, Gambling Commission

Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison, Gambling Commission



Chair Alicia Levy Vice Chair Julia Patterson

Sarah Lawson Anders IbsenBud Sizemore

Commissioners



Ex Officio Members

Senator
Steve Conway

29th District

Representative
Shelley Kloba

1st District

Representative
Eric Robertson

31st District

Senator
Jeff Holy

6th District



1988: Indian Gaming Regulatory Act

“Class III gaming activities shall be lawful on 
Indian lands only if such activities are located 
in a State that permits such gaming and are 

conducted in conformance with a
 tribal-state compact…”



- Casino-style gaming activities

- Criminal and civil jurisdiction

- Fees for state regulation

- Remedies for breach of contract

- Standards of operation

Negotiation Topics



1988: Indian Gaming Regulatory Act

“The purpose of this chapter is…
to protect such gaming as a means of generating 

tribal revenue.”

“The State must
negotiate in good faith

when a compact or amendment is requested by 
a tribe.”



- No criminal involvement

- Gaming conducted fairly, 

honestly

- Gaming limited to authorized 

activities

- Minimize negative impacts on 

local law enforcement, 

emergency services

Public Protection Interests



Gaming Compact Amendment 
Approval Process

Compact negotiated by 
WSGC Director

Direction from State 
policy makers

Proposed Amendment 
submitted to 

Commission & 
Legislature

Legislative Hearing Commission Hearing & 
Vote

Governor Reviews & 
has final execution

Tribe forwards to 
Secretary of Interior

Amendment Effective 
when published in the 

Federal Register



“The Stillaguamish Tribe looks forward to our continued collaboration and partnership with the 
Washington State Gaming Commission. This relationship underscores a mutual commitment to 
fostering a sustainable gaming environment that benefits all stakeholders while honoring the 
Stillaguamish people's cultural heritage and economic aspirations. Together, we aim to set a 

standard for responsible gaming practices that can serve as a model for others.”

Chairman, ERIC WHITE



Tribal History

 Stuləgʷábš, English translation known as Stillaguamish
 Refers to our people who lived along the Stillaguamish River and camped along its 

tributaries

 1855 – The Tribe resided on Camano, the mouth and main stem of the 
Stillaguamish River, as well as the north and south forks

 1855 – Treaty of Point Elliott

 October 27, 1976 – The Tribe received federal recognition
 1974 – Boldt Decision affirmed, recognized treaty rights, made eligible for federal 

services

 2014 – The Tribe granted reservation from federal government
 64 acres in Snohomish County, WA near the Stillaguamish River



Tribal Map



Tribal government

 Stillaguamish Tribal Council

 Created in 1953 via the Tribe’s 
constitution

 Six elected members
 Chairman

 Vice Chairman

 Secretary

 Treasurer

 Two Non-Officer Members

 Providing services to assist every
Tribal member



Tribal Administration

 Tribal Government, Outdoor 
Media, 210 Cannabis CO, and 
River Rock Fuel Stations 
employ a total of 330 
Community & Tribal members

 Transportation Department
 Provides transit services to the 

Tribal community

 Planning Department
 Works on land use issues, utility 

management, road maintenance, 
grant writing



Tribal Administration

 Family Resources Department
 Offers services to Tribal families

 Cultural Resources Department
 Plans cultural events, preserves 

cultural sites, and keeps history

 Tribal Enrollment Department

 Police Department
 Provides security and resources for 

the Tribal community and Tribal 
enterprises



 Housing Department
 In 2016 the Tribe, with its Tribal citizens, went through a series of hands-

on interactive workshops to envision a new Stillaguamish Village. Based 
on the workshops, a final master site plan was developed. This project 
was fully Tribal funded without the use of grants. In addition to the 15 
housing units created within the Stillaguamish Village, the Tribe has 49 
additional scattered site homes that are fully Tribal funded and 
subsidized through Tribal hard dollars. 

 Canoe House-Carving Shed – This building provides a space to 
engage in our canoe and carving practices. The Tribe’s carvers host 
classes such as tool making, canoe building, totem pole carvings, 
carving art. The canoe family gathers here for training and social events, 
as well as stores their canoes in this location. 

 Holistic Healing Center – This building hosts the Tribe’s health 
practitioners, such as family practice doctors, mental health counselors, 
and massage therapists. This building also has a community room, 
which is open for community-based gatherings, such as weaving, 
cooking, and language classes. 

 Elders Campus – The Elders Campus is comprised of six units: the 
elders longhouse, four elders cottages, and the elders park. These units 
are all ADA compliant, highly energy efficient, and come with a whole 
house generator to assist during power outages. The Tribe subsidizes 
elders’ rent through Tribal hard dollars.

 Single Family Homes – There are currently five single family 
homes that sit along a neighborhood park. Families that live in these 
units pay no more than 20% of their adjusted income on rent. The Tribe 
subsidizes rent through Tribal hard dollars. 

 Playground Park – The playground includes elements that have 
been designed with a nice touch of nature play, including a log jam 
concept inspired by the traditional stick game that includes large slahal 
sticks made from logs. Our Tribal carvers built a beautiful dugout canoe 
as a play element. The park includes a public restroom. 

Tribal Administration



Stillaguamish health clinic

 Open to Stillaguamish Tribal 
members and their families, other 
enrolled Native Americans, and 
Tribal employees

 Massage Therapy Clinic
 Restores clients’ health and wellbeing 

through massage therapy and bodywork



qʷəlút Healing center

 Assists the community to improve 
individual functioning and elevate the 
quality of life for all

 Behavioral Health Programs
 Offers Substance Use Disorder (SUD) 

treatment and mental health services

 Approximately 750 patients served in 2023

 Island Crossing Counseling Services
 Assists the community to achieve a lifestyle 

of sobriety and health



Community center

 Located in the middle of the Tribal 
Housing Community

 Houses the Tribe’s Daycare, part of 
the Cultural Department, Youth 
Services and Kitchen

 Youth Services
 Goal is to make getting an education as 

accessible as possible

 Open and available to Stillaguamish 
citizens

 Cultural events, funerals, Summer 
Youth Program



natural Resources building
 Created in 1974 due to the Boldt Decision

 Manages, protects, and conserves the natural resources that are 
required to sustain healthy populations of fish, shellfish, and wildlife 
within the Stillaguamish Tribe’s usual and accustomed areas 
(Stillaguamish watershed)

The Stillaguamish Tribe’s Natural Resources Department focuses on protecting, 
enhancing, and restoring important treaty resources that are co-managed with other 
Treaty Tribes and the State of Washington. The Tribe’s Natural Resources Department 
is home to 4 separate programs which include: Fisheries, Wildlife, Water Quality, and 
Environmental Restoration & Stewardship.
The work the Natural Resources Department is able to achieve through shared State 
and Tribal economic success and partnerships helps ensure greater climate resiliency 
and environmental stewardship for all Washingtonians. 

Some key examples of this work includes:
Two Tribally Owned/Operated Hatcheries that produce ESA listed populations of 
Stillaguamish Chinook. The fish released from these hatcheries are genetically 
indistinct from their wild cohorts, and are produced solely to stave off extinction, while 
also serving as scientific indicators of where harvest impacts are hitting our salmon 
resources the hardest. Due to the co-management relationship between the 
Stillaguamish Tribe and state agencies like Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife 
(WDFW), we can responsibly manage salmon fisheries in Washington State, and work 
together to mitigate impacts on our stocks from northern fisheries in Canada and 
Alaska.

The Stillaguamish Tribe and WDFW have worked together over the past few years to 
invest over $5.3 Million dollars in completing 318 acres of wetland connectivity work, 
opening up a combined total of 7.3 miles of tidal channels that will improve climate 
resiliency, and provide refuge and nursery habitat to ESA listed salmon populations in 
Port Susan Bay. 



236th St Ne Safety improvements
Stillaguamish Tribe Completes 236th St NE 
Safety Improvements Project

The Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians finished the 
236th St NE Safety Improvements Project in 
September 2022. This project enhanced safety 
and environmental features along the roadway 
between 13th Ave NE and 35th Ave NE in 
Snohomish County.

Key improvements include:
• Wider shoulders and improved sight lines
• Roundabout at the 19th Avenue intersection
• Replaced fish barrier with a wildlife crossing
• Raised roadway with new culverts for better water flow 

and animal passage
• Stormwater management ponds
• New sidewalks, curbs, and pavement markings

Construction techniques minimized road closures, 
and detours were used when necessary. Access to 
homes and businesses remained open throughout 
the project.



River rock tobacco & fuel

 Two locations:
 21125 Smokey Point Blvd, 

Arlington, WA 98223
 January 1, 2024 – April 

10, 2024
Averaging 2,602 
Customers Per Day

 23704 13th Ave NE, 
Arlington, WA 98223
 January 1, 2024 – April 

10, 2024
Averaging 5,856 
Customers Per Day



Angel of the winds
casino resort

 Gaming (Slots, Table Games)

 8 food venues

 RV Resort

 Hotel (125 rooms)

 Keno, Strikerz Bowling, Rivers 
Run Event Center, All Things 
Sports

 Employs 767 Community & Tribal 
Members as of March 2024



Community impact
 Tribal donations from January 2023 to December 2023 

totaled over $1.5 million

 $100,000 to A Christmas Wish

 $100,000 to the Arlington Food Bank

 $100,000 to Bender’s One Big Give Benefiting Seattle Children’s 
Hospital Foundation

 $100,000 to Cocoon House

 $100,000 to Providence General Foundation

 And much more

 Donates to five fire districts within the Tribe’s watershed

2021-2022:
North County Regional Fire Authority $289,000
Snohomish County Sheriff $107,683
Snohomish County Public Works  $56,675
Arlington Police Department $68,000
Washington State Patrol $11,391

2023:
$200,000 to Snohomish County Fire District 21 Arlington 
Heights Fire Department
$196,700 Snohomish County Fire District 25 Oso Fire 
Department

“The Tribe’s success is the
community’s success.”



–Does not allow “play against the machine”

–Played consistent with traditional table game

–Nine (9) ETG stations = 1 traditional table

–Wager limits = $500

–Played with an electronic wagering system

–Joint TGA & SGA field testing

–Problem & Responsible Gaming funding

Electronic Table Games:

Summary of Compact Changes



Public Comments & Next Steps

VOTE 
to forward 

to Governor

VOTE
to Return to 
the Director



 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest. 

 
March 14, 2024 

 Special Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
The meeting was held at the Liquor and Cannabis Board Building in Olympia, WA. 

 
Commissioners:                                      
Chair Alicia Levy – In person   
Vice Chair Julia Patterson – In person   
Bud Sizemore – In person   
Sarah Lawson – Virtual   
Anders Ibsen – In person 
 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
Senator Steve Conway – Virtual 
Senator Jeff Holy – Excused 
Representative Shelley Kloba - Excused 
Representative Eric Robertson- Virtual 

Staff Present: 
 Tina Griffin, Director; Gary Drumheller, Deputy Director; Adam Amorine, Staff Attorney, and 

Interim Rules Coordinator; Troy Kirby, PIO; Damon Mentzer, Administrative Assistant; 
Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General (AAG)  
 
Staff Present Virtually: 
Jim Nicks, Assistant Director; Bill McGregor, Special Agent Supervisor; and Nicole Frazer,  
Administrative Assistant 
 
There were 18 people in the audience and 56 people attended virtually.  
 
Chair Levy welcomed everyone to the Liquor and Cannabis Board and called the  
March meeting to order at 9:34 AM. She announced that the meeting would be recorded.  
 
Tab 1 Consent Agenda  
Chair Levy asked the Commissioners if they had any changes to the consent agenda. She 
asked commissioners if they had any questions. There were none. She asked for public 
comment. There was none. 
   
Commissioner Ibsen moved to approve the consent agenda as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 4:0  
Commissioner Lawson was not present at the time of the vote. 
 
Tab 2 Presentation – Problem Gambling Awareness Month 
Tina Griffin, Director, began the presentation with a brief Directors’ report. She  
Announced that March is Problem Gambling Awareness Month and that the Disordered  
Gambling Advisory Workgroup (DGAW) met recently. The group talked about the GRIT  
Act. They received an update that it would most likely not pass this Legislative Session, but the 
National Council on Problem Gambling has a dedicated page on their website to the GRIT Act. 
She told commissioners if they wanted to add a letter of support to that website moving 
forward, let her know.  Commissioner Patterson asked Representative Robertson to consider 
passing a resolution supporting the GRIT Act. He agreed. She would also like to ask Senator 
Conway to mirror Representative Robertson’s efforts.  



March 14, 2024 
Special Commission meeting minutes 
Page 2 
 

4565 7th Avenue SE 
Lacey, WA 98503 
wsgc.wa.gov 

PO Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 
360-486-3440 

901 N Monroe St Suite 240 
Spokane, WA 99201 
509-325-7900 

 

 
Tina Griffin, Director; introduced Tana Russell, Deputy Director Evergreen Council on 
Problem Gambling and Roxane Waldron MPA, Health Care Authority to present their  
presentations.  
 
Commissioner Lawson joined the meeting. 
 
Tab 3 – Legislative Update 
Tina Griffin, Director, presented the materials for this tab. Director Griffin gave a brief 
summary of the bills that we tracked this session. She announced that the animal cruelty bill 
that Commissioners chose to support passed. Director Griffin also mentioned that at the May 
commission meeting staff will be bringing topics for potential agency request legislation 
discussion for consideration for the 2025 Legislative Session.   
 
Chair Levy asked for public comments. There was no public comment. 
 
Tab 4 – Rules up for Final Action – Non-Profit Raffle Rules 
Adam Amorine, Staff Attorney, and Interim Rules Coordinator (RC) presented the materials 
for this tab.  
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any comments. They did not.  
She asked for public comments. There was none. 
 
Commissioner Sizemore moved to take final action on the proposed final rules as presented by  
staff. 
Commissioner Ibsen seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 4:0  
Commissioner Lawson abstained. 
 
Tab 5 – Rules Up for Final Action – Adjacent Card rooms 
Adam Amorine, Staff Attorney, and Interim Rules Coordinator (RC) presented the materials 
for this tab. This rule will be back on the May agenda. 
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any comments. They did not.  
She asked for public comments. There was none. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to further amend WAC 230-03-182 for further discussion and  
strike the last sentence of subsection2, which states, “The provisions of subsection (1) of this  
section will take effect upon the issuance of a new license.” 
Commissioner Sizemore seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 5:0  
 
Commissioners took a 10-minute break. 
 
Tab 6 – Rules up for Discussion and Possible Filing – Problem Gambling Signage 
Adam Amorine, Staff Attorney, and Interim Rules Coordinator (RC) presented the materials 
for this tab. Commissioner Patterson thanked staff for their hard work. 
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any questions. They did not.  
She asked for Public Comment. There were none.  
 



March 14, 2024 
Special Commission meeting minutes 
Page 3 
 

4565 7th Avenue SE 
Lacey, WA 98503 
wsgc.wa.gov 

PO Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 
360-486-3440 

901 N Monroe St Suite 240 
Spokane, WA 99201 
509-325-7900 

 

Commissioner Patterson moved to file the proposed rules for further discussion as presented by  
staff.  
Commissioner Anders seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 5:0  
 
Tab 7 – Staff Request to Initiate Rule Making – Minimum Cash on Hand 
Adam Amorine, Staff Attorney, and Interim Rules Coordinator (RC) presented the  
materials for this tab. In developing new rules for minimum cash on hand requirements, staff 
is weighing the concerns that were originally articulated by the petitioners along with staff's 
concerns and really the public's concerns that all winning prizes are paid out in full and in a 
timely manner. Staff still do have some concerns in generating this language, but at the same 
time we are ready to recommend rulemaking to amend the WAC and create new rules related to 
how prizes can be paid. 
 
Chair Levy asked Commissioners if they had any questions. Commissioner Sizemore asked if 
staffs concerns were because the players are being paid out in cash? RC Amorine stated that 
the staff’s interest wasn’t that the players are paid out in cash at the time of the win, it was 
more that they are interested in making sure that they are paid fully. 
 
Chair Levy asked for Public Comment. 
  
Eric Persson, Owner of Maverick Gaming. Mr. Persson gave public testimony to express his 
concerns over the minimum cash on hand rule. His primary concerns are about consumer 
confidence and public safety.   
 
Chair Levy asked for any further comments from Commissioners. There were none.  
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to initiate rulemaking proceedings for further discussion.  
Commissioner Sizemore seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 5:0  
 
Chair Levy announced at 11:04 AM Commissioners would adjourn to Executive Session to 
discuss current and potential agency litigation with legal counsel, including tribal negotiations 
for approximately two and a half hours. 
 
Chair Levy asked for public comment. There was none. 
 
Chair Levy announced that the next commission meeting would be held at the Gambling 
Commission headquarters on April 25th.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 1:16 PM 



 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest. 

 
April 25, 2024 

 Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
The meeting was held at the Gambling Commission Lacey Headquarters 

Lacey, WA. 
 

Commissioners:                                      
Chair Alicia Levy – Virtual   
Vice Chair Julia Patterson – Virtual   
Bud Sizemore – Virtual   
Sarah Lawson – Virtual   
Anders Ibsen – Virtual 
 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
Senator Steve Conway – Virtual 
Senator Jeff Holy –Excused 
Representative Shelley Kloba - Virtual 
Representative Eric Robertson-Excused 

Staff Present: 
 Tina Griffin, Director; Damon Mentzer, Administrative Assistant 

 
Staff Present Virtually: 
Gary Drumheller, Deputy Director; Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison, Julie Anderson, Executive  
Assistant and Nicole Frazer, Administrative Assistant 
 
There were 2 people in the audience and 32 people attended virtually.  
 
Chair Levy welcomed everyone to the Gambling Commission and called the April meeting 
to order at 9:34 AM all Commissioners and Ex Officios in attendance were virtual. She 
announced that the meeting would be recorded.  
 
Tab 1 Proposed Compact Hearing 
Tina Griffin, Director and Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison presented the materials for this 
tab. The Honorable Vice Chairman Hitchcock, Cowlitz Indian Tribe gave a short 
presentation.    
 
Commissioner Sizemore reminded Vice Chair Patterson that at the April 2014 
commission meeting they voted on the original Cowlitz Indian Tribes compact 
amendment. He shared that over the years the Cowlitz Indian Tribe has done fine 
work.  
 
Chair Levy asked for public comment. There was none. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to forward the proposed compact amendment for the 
Cowlitz Indian Tribe to the governor for review and final execution. Commissioner 
Sizemore seconded the motion. The motion passed 7:0. 
 
The commission meeting adjourned at 9:56.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSION APPROVAL LIST 
(New Licenses & Class III Gaming Employees) 

May 2024 
 

 
Index 

 
 
 

                                                                    PAGE 
NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS & COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES…………     1-3 
 
DISTRIBUTOR REPRESENTATIVE ………………………………………….      4 
 
MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE ……………………………………        4-7 
 
MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE…………………………      7-8 
 
MID-LEVEL SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE……………………      8 
 
ANCILLARY SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE ………………….       8 
 
NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER ……………………………………         8-9 
 
SERVICE SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE …………………………………...      9 
 
CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE …………………………………………………....      10-16 
 
CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE ……………………………………………       17-31 
 
 
                                                                               PAGES:31 
 
 
Based upon the licensing investigations, staff recommends approving all new Licenses and 
Class III employees listed on pages 1 to 31. 



DATE: 04/25/2024

ORGANIZATION NAME

LICENSE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 1 of 31

BINGO

YAKIMA WA 9890101-0284100-25285
116 S 4TH STUNITED WAY OF CENTRAL WASHINGTON

RAFFLE

SEATTLE WA 9814402-0931000-23037
100 23RD AVE SADVOCACY AND CARING FOR CHILDREN

BURIEN WA 9816802-2123400-24891
13028 1ST AVE SCASA ITALIANA - ITALIAN CULTURAL CENTER

RIDGEFIELD WA 9864202-2140200-25339
EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES FOR CHILDREN                      1 COWLITZ WAY

VANCOUVER WA 9868202-0958100-23488
9001 NE 119TH STGLENWOOD LITTLE LEAGUE

VANCOUVER WA 9866102-2139500-25304
5001 NE 66TH AVELUPINE EXPERIENTIAL SCHOOL

ONALASKA WA 9857002-2132200-25094
456 PENNEL AVEONALASKA BOYS YOUTH BASEBALL ASSOCIATION

KELSO WA 9862602-2140900-25147
900 ASH STROTARY FOUNDATION OF KELSO

SHORELINE WA 9813302-2139800-25245
926 N 165TH STSEATTLE SELECT BASEBALL CLUB

IONE WA 9813902-0840300-19501
312 MAIN STSELKIRK TRAIL BLAZERS ASSOCIATION

FEDERAL WAY WA 9800302-2138700-25276
34410 16TH AVE SSPORTSMEN FOR CONSERVATION FUND

FEDERAL WAY WA 9800302-0073700-00826
30527 8TH AVE SST VINCENT DE PAUL SCHOOL

KENNEWICK WA 99336-375502-2131700-11250
102 E KENNEWICK AVETRI CITY ALANO CLUB

WINLOCK WA 9859602-2139200-25292
103 SHORTLINE DRTWIN CITIES LACROSSE ASSOCIATION

YAKIMA WA 9890102-2139000-25285
116 S 4TH STUNITED WAY OF CENTRAL WASHINGTON



DATE: 04/25/2024

ORGANIZATION NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

 

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 2 of 31

RAFFLE

SEDRO WOOLLEY WA 9828402-2124400-24912
570 BELLA STVALLEY GREEN ACRES 4-H CLUB

WASHOUGAL WA 9867102-2112100-24633
PO BOX 270WEST COLUMBIA GORGE HUMANE SOCIETY

PUNCHBOARD/PULL-TAB COMMERCIAL STIMULANT

SEATTLE WA 9811605-2185300-25218
4210 SW ADMIRAL WAY STE ABENBOW ROOM

TUMWATER WA 9850105-2186400-25259
804 79TH AVE SE STE 108COFFEE PUB NW

MUKILTEO WA 9827505-2186500-25260
8306 MUKILTEO SPEEDWAYCOLE'S TAVERN

TUMWATER WA 9850105-2183900-25176
111 TUMWATER BLVD SE STE AFARRELLI'S PIZZA

LACEY WA 9851605-2184000-25177
8825 TALLON LN NE STE K & LFARRELLI'S PIZZA

TACOMA WA 9844405-2187000-25282
10713 PARK AVE SHARD LUCK BAR & GRILL

TUKWILA WA 9818805-2176000-24893
15901 W VALLEY HWYIMPERIAL PALACE CASINO

GRAYLAND WA 9854705-2186900-25278
2183 SR 105LOCAL BAR & GRILL

BREMERTON WA 9831005-2186100-25244
2113 W 11TH STMANETTE SALOON RESTAURANT & LOUNGE

SEATTLE WA 9810605-2187600-25297
9454 DELRIDGE WAY SWMAX'S TRIANGLE PUB

MANUFACTURER

NORTH LAS VEGAS NV 8903220-0027620-00276
2455 W CHEYENNE AVESHARK TRAP GAMING & SECURITY SYSTEMS LLC



DATE: 04/25/2024

ORGANIZATION NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

 

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 3 of 31

GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIER

SPOKANE WA 9920626-0038200-24058
3831 N ATLANTIC STINLAND EMPIRE GAMBLING RECORDS

COMMERCIAL AMUSEMENT GAMES OPERATOR

SPOKANE VALLEY WA 9920653-2157100-25238
10502 E MONTGOMERY DR STE 5FLIGHT 509

CARD GAME NON HOUSE-BANKED

BLAINE WA 9823060-0055900-02157
4580 LEGION DRAMERICAN LEGION 00086

YAKIMA WA 98902-343760-0051000-00337
307 W CHESTNUT AVEFOE 00289/YAKIMA

NON HOUSE-BANKED CARD GAME

KENNEWICK WA 9935265-0754400-25207
5215 CLEARWATER AVE, SUITE 111DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOM

HOUSE BANKED CARD GAMES

TUKWILA WA 9818867-0034800-24893
15901 W VALLEY HWYIMPERIAL PALACE CASINO



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 4 of 31

DISTRIBUTOR REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 89119-372822-01355
JCM GLOBALADORABLE, ROBERT S

LAS VEGAS NV 89119-372822-01357
JCM GLOBALARIAS, DAVID J JR

LAS VEGAS NV 8911822-01360
INTERBLOCK USA LLCDAMAS-MONTENEGRO, ERIK F

MUKILTEO WA 9827522-00980
WOW DISTRIBUTINGDENCKER, KENNET S

ARLINGTON WA 9822322-01361
MAGIC DISTRIBUTING INCENGLER, BRAYDEN J

LAS VEGAS NV 8912022-01202
NRT TECHNOLOGIES INCMURRAY, TIMOTHY D

LAS VEGAS NV 89119-372822-01356
JCM GLOBALRAMIREZ, ROMEO M JR

LAS VEGAS NV 8911822-01359
INTERBLOCK USA LLCRATKIEWICZ, GABRIEL J

LAS VEGAS NV 89119-372822-01358
JCM GLOBALROGERS, MARK J

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03910
IGTALLISON, STEVEN E

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03890
LIGHT & WONDERANANTHAKUMAR, JESINTHA

LAS VEGAS NV 89119-350423-03855
GAMING ARTS LLCANDRADE, ALEXANDER J

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03883
LIGHT & WONDERASHFORD, DONNELL K

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-01169
IGTBAJARI, MARK A

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03899
LIGHT & WONDERBALAN, HARIKRISHNAN



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 5 of 31

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03882
IGTBITTING, JEFFREY E

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03469
IGTBRAVO, BRITTANY C

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03892
IGTCAMP, CHADRON G

LAS VEGAS NV 8911823-00524
AGS LLCCHAO, SANTSAI

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03222
IGTCHIECHI, DEVON R

LAS VEGAS NV 89113-217523-03880
EVERI PAYMENTS INCDEPEW, MICHAEL L

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03912
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCDU, JOHN E

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03907
LIGHT & WONDERDURAISAMY, PREMKUMAR D

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03906
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCENRIGHT, THOMAS N

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03886
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCESPINOZA, MARIA E

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03901
IGTFURMAN, NICHOLAS W

LAS VEGAS NV 89113-217523-03897
EVERI PAYMENTS INCGIBSON, SEAN M

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03877
IGTGIVENS, MELANIE M

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03911
IGTGUINTO, THOMAS C

LAS VEGAS NV 89113-217523-03888
EVERI PAYMENTS INCHEENAN, MATTHEW S

LAS VEGAS NV 89113-217523-03889
EVERI PAYMENTS INCHERNANDEZ, JOHNNY J



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 6 of 31

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03878
LIGHT & WONDERHITTINAMATH, VEERANNA R

LAS VEGAS NV 8911823-03896
AGS LLCJENG, MING D

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03884
LIGHT & WONDERKURAPOTHULA, PRIYANKA

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-01946
LIGHT & WONDERLASAP, JOEL A

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03891
IGTLINDSEY, ROTONYA M

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03913
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCMARTIN-RODRIGUEZ, HECTOR H

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03902
IGTMILLS, JESSE T

LAS VEGAS NV 8911823-03903
EVERI GAMES INC.MORRIS, JOSEPH E

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03908
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCNOBLES, MICHAEL C

LAS VEGAS NV 8911823-03904
EVERI GAMES INC.OLSON, DEREK W

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03887
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCPECKHAM, ANTONIA J

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-02051
IGTPEREZ VELASCO, JESUS M

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-01947
LIGHT & WONDERPINEDA, EDWARD A

LAS VEGAS NV 89113-217523-03893
EVERI PAYMENTS INCRANKINS, COURTNEY C

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03895
IGTREGNER, GIOVANNI C

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03914
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCROBROCK, TRIANNA M



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 7 of 31

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03885
LIGHT & WONDERRUSS, CHRISTOPHER M

LAS VEGAS NV 8911823-03894
EVERI GAMES INC.SANCHEZ, MARTIN

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03881
LIGHT & WONDERSANKARAN, MAHARASI

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03909
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCSCHEIDT, ERIC A

LAS VEGAS NV 8913523-03915
ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES INCSHILOH, JUSTIN T

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03425
IGTSHOEMAKER, JEFFERY L JR

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03900
LIGHT & WONDERSUBRAMANI, MOHAN RAJ

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03879
LIGHT & WONDERVENKATESAN, VIDHYA SAGAR

LAS VEGAS NV 8911923-03905
LIGHT & WONDERVENKATESH, SINDHU

LAS VEGAS NV 8911323-03345
IGTWISSING, TIMOTHY J

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

BOSTON MA 0211633-00623
DRAFTKINGSANDRII, PROTSENKO V

BOSTON MA 0211633-00629
DRAFTKINGSCOOK, STEPHEN J

BOSTON MA 0211633-00610
DRAFTKINGSDAMYANOV, DIMITAR P

BOSTON MA 0211633-00628
DRAFTKINGSGEORGIEVA, KATERINA P

LAS VEGAS NV 8911833-00621
CAESARS SPORTSBOOKHAUKE, PATRICK W



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 8 of 31

MAJOR SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

BOSTON MA 0211633-00627
DRAFTKINGSKOVACHEV, KOSTADIN G

LAS VEGAS NV 8911833-00626
CAESARS SPORTSBOOKLOPERA JARAMILLO, RICARDO

LAS VEGAS NV 8911833-00625
CAESARS SPORTSBOOKMARKWARDT, KEVIN A

BOSTON MA 0211633-00622
DRAFTKINGSMAYBURY, ZACHARY R

LAS VEGAS NV 8911833-00620
CAESARS SPORTSBOOKMEREDITH, JASON C

BOSTON MA 0211633-00609
DRAFTKINGSSLAVCHEV, ROSEN S

BOSTON MA 0211633-00624
DRAFTKINGSTODOROV, LYUBOMIR A

LAS VEGAS NV 8910333-00619
BETFRED SPORTSTORRES, RAYMOND A

MID-LEVEL SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

LAS VEGAS NV 8911934-00042
DRUVSTARCHENUPATI, SHEELA C

ANCILLARY SPORTS WAGERING REPRESENTATIVE

WASHINGTON DC 2000335-00043
ARISTOTLE INTERNATIONAL INCBOLCEREK, MICHAEL R

NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER

SULTAN WA 9829461-04873
FOE 04149/SKY VALLEYBEACH, JOANNE H

PROSSER WA 9935061-04871
FOE 02647/PROSSERBOYLE, STEVEN L



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 9 of 31

NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER

PORT ANGELES WA 9836261-04706
LOOM 00996/PORT ANGELESFARNSWORTH, KAREN C

PORT ANGELES WA 98362-909561-04870
FOE 00483/PORT ANGELESFREDERICK, SCOTT A

PORT ANGELES WA 98362-909561-04869
FOE 00483/PORT ANGELESJOHNSON, JAMES E

LYNNWOOD WA 9803661-04468
BPOE 02171/LYNNWOODRICHCREEK, DAVID D

MONTESANO WA 9856361-04372
LOOM 01210/MONTESANOWARNE, JON E

KENNEWICK WA 9933661-04867
ROTARY CLUB/COLUMBIA CENTERWEST, MARY M

SERVICE SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE

REDMOND WA 9805263-01144
TECHPOWER SOLUTIONSCARDINAL, ROGER L

ATLANTA GA 3036363-01139
HONEYWELL SECURITYHOCKENBURY, MICHAEL P

ATLANTA GA 3036363-00383
HONEYWELL SECURITYHUGUET, BERNARDO

ROCKLIN CA 9567763-01141
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMSKEITH, DARRIN

KIRKLAND WA 9803463-01156
MAVERICK WASHINGTONKERVIN, AMANDA L

KIRKLAND WA 9803463-01155
MAVERICK WASHINGTONKHOSH, SONIA

MOUNT VERNON WA 9827463-01143
E & S DEAD GAMESMAYER, SUSAN L

KIRKLAND WA 9803463-01154
MAVERICK WASHINGTONSUTTON, JANETTE

KIRKLAND WA 9803463-01153
MAVERICK WASHINGTONVILLAZANA, ARACELI



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 10 of 31

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

TUKWILA WA 98168B68-37568
RIVERSIDE CASINOAL-MADANI, NABIL M

YAKIMA WA 98901B68-15807
CASINO CARIBBEANAPARICIO, ALFREDO A

YAKIMA WA 98901B68-37591
CASINO CARIBBEANARMSTRONG, CORDAN J

LA CENTER WA 98629B68-37617
THE PALACEARMSTRONG, KYLE T

LACEY WA 98516B68-37590
FORTUNE CASINO - LACEYAVERY, BRIAN J

SPOKANE WA 99208-7393B68-05863
LILAC LANES & CASINOBAKER, ANTHONY L

RENTON WA 98057B68-37564
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONBARRETT, BO J

RENTON WA 98057B68-37611
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONBERTRAM, SUMMER G

EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802B68-37612
BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENATCHEEBILDERBACK, CONNOR M

KENNEWICK WA 99352B68-37625
DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOMBODE, MATTHEW T

TUKWILA WA 98188B68-36744
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOBOUNKHOUN, AENOI

PULLMAN WA 99163B68-37600
ZEPPOZBOWEN, RILEY I

YAKIMA WA 98901B68-37632
CASINO CARIBBEANBRAVO-MENDOZA, VALENTIN  JR

RENTON WA 98057B68-37637
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONCALLERO, APOLLO E

AUBURN WA 98002B68-19141
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOCANFIELD, JENNIFER I

SPOKANE WA 99208-7393B68-29663
LILAC LANES & CASINOCANNON, JUSTIN R



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 11 of 31

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

RENTON WA 98057B68-37610
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONCHEN, SHU J

LA CENTER WA 98629B68-22612
THE PALACECHIN, FUNG Y

RENTON WA 98057B68-37589
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONCHONG, ANDREA

KENNEWICK WA 99336B68-37585
COYOTE BOB'S CASINOCISNEROS, LAURA

LA CENTER WA 98629-0000B68-37626
LAST FRONTIERCYRUS, MICHAEL A

KENNEWICK WA 99336B68-19524
COYOTE BOB'S CASINODAVIS, JACKSON W

SEATTLE WA 98126B68-37565
ROXBURY LANES AND CASINODIAZ, JOSEPH A

CLARKSTON WA 99403-2219B68-37606
LANCER LANES AND CASINODRAPER, ADDY L

TUKWILA WA 98168B68-37613
RIVERSIDE CASINOFERNANDEZ, LOKAHI T

EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802B68-15308
CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINOGABEL, JASON J

YAKIMA WA 98901B68-37629
CASINO CARIBBEANGAITHER, JILL A

YAKIMA WA 98902B68-37602
NOB HILL CASINOGARFIAS-SOTO, NATHALY

RENTON WA 98057B68-17477
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONGAYED, SAMEH W

KENNEWICK WA 99352B68-21581
DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOMGENTRY, JANINE D

YAKIMA WA 98901B68-37563
CASINO CARIBBEANHAWKINS, KYLE D

RENTON WA 98057B68-37601
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONHEALD, CARTER C



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 12 of 31

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

B68-37567
HENDRIX, DEVON M

B68-37636
 CD RMHENRY, ADRIAN L

B68-37633

ROXBURY LANES AND CASINO
SEATTLE WA 98126

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIESTA 
RICHLAND WA 99352-4122

DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOM
KENNEWICK WA 99352

HENRY, LARINA A

YAKIMA WA 98902B68-37623
NOB HILL CASINOHERNANDEZ, MARK A

SEATTLE WA 98126B68-37566
ROXBURY LANES AND CASINOHUERECA, JUAN M III

PULLMAN WA 99163B68-37604
ZEPPOZIGLESIAS, EMILY D

KENNEWICK WA 99352B68-32243
DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOMISAAC, STEVEN M

CLARKSTON WA 99403-2219B68-37573
LANCER LANES AND CASINOJACKSON, ELI R

TUKWILA WA 98188B68-37052
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOJIA, QIU X

KENNEWICK WA 99352B68-21218
DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOMJOHNSON, MATTHEW J

KENNEWICK WA 99352B68-37605
DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOMJOSLYN, SAMUEL M

AUBURN WA 98002B68-37614
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOKHAMSOKSAVATH, UDUM

EVERETT WA 98204B68-26381
ROYAL CASINOKIM, CHINDA

MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 98043-2463B68-37634
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLKE TERRACEKOLESA-JONES, CRYSTAL D

TUKWILA WA 98168B68-37631
RIVERSIDE CASINOKORSAKAS, KYLER M

TUKWILA WA 98188B68-28993
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOLE, MY D



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 13 of 31

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

B68-37592
LEEPER, JESSE D

B68-31839
LEFEBVRE, MATHEW C

B68-37627
LENOIR, JUSTIN L

B68-37572
LOGG, TAYLOR N

B68-34639

CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINO EAST 
WENATCHEE WA 98802

THE PALACE
LA CENTER WA 98629

LAST FRONTIER
LA CENTER WA 98629-0000

PAPAS CASINO RESTAURANT & LOUNGE 
MOSES LAKE WA 98837

THE PALACE
LA CENTER WA 98629

LUY, SOPHEA

KIRKLAND WA 98034B68-11552
CASINO CARIBBEANLYONS, DAVID M

B68-37621
MATEO, PEDRO S JR

B68-18372
MAY, LINH T

B68-37550
MCCLAIN, ANDREW J

B68-37615
MEDEL, SAPHAL K

B68-37596
MIESEN, CHRIS J

B68-37583
MOORE, CLAYTON J

B68-37608
MOORE, LACY D

B68-37597
MORAN, ANTHONY L

B68-37575
MUNROE, ELIJAH H

B68-37622

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON 
RENTON WA 98057

THE PALACE
LA CENTER WA 98629

FORTUNE CASINO - LACEY 
LACEY WA 98516

IMPERIAL PALACE CASINO 
AUBURN WA 98002

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON 
RENTON WA 98057

ZEPPOZ
PULLMAN WA 99163

LANCER LANES AND CASINO 
CLARKSTON WA 99403-2219

ACE'S POKER
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 98043

SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY 
BELLINGHAM WA 98225

DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOM 
KENNEWICK WA 99352

MURDOCK, CHRISTOPHER M



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 14 of 31

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 98043B68-29072
ACE'S POKERNGUYEN, DOAN Q

YAKIMA WA 98901B68-18941
CASINO CARIBBEANNIDIFFER, DEREK R

MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 98043B68-13639
ACE'S POKERNILSON, SHANE T

SEATTLE WA 98126B68-37593
ROXBURY LANES AND CASINONIUMATA, TAURUS C

YAKIMA WA 98908B68-33525
CLUB 48NORMAN, JACOB C

YAKIMA WA 98902B68-37587
NOB HILL CASINOPADILLA, PORTIA B

AUBURN WA 98002B68-37594
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOPAEZ, HANSEL F

SEATTLE WA 98178B68-16748
ROMAN CASINOPAUL, VITO C

SILVERDALE WA 98383B68-37595
ALL STAR CASINOPAVLICEK, JESSE H

KENNEWICK WA 99352B68-37635
DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOMPERKINS, JORDAN M

RENTON WA 98057B68-23677
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONPHAN, BAN N

YAKIMA WA 98901B68-36133
CASINO CARIBBEANREED, JADIENNA S

KIRKLAND WA 98034B68-34817
CARIBBEAN CARDROOMRHODES, IRA L

PULLMAN WA 99163B68-36409
ZEPPOZRICHARDS, DALTON J

KIRKLAND WA 98034B68-29583
CARIBBEAN CARDROOMRO, CHRISTOPHER T

MILL CREEK WA 98012-6384B68-32288
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL CREEKROGERS, CORY J



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 15 of 31

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

LA CENTER WA 98629B68-34045
NEW PHOENIXROWE, KEVIN L

TUKWILA WA 98188B68-10493
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOSAETEURN, LYNDA Y

AUBURN WA 98002B68-18192
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOSALMI, SEPPO J

YAKIMA WA 98902B68-37570
NOB HILL CASINOSHOEMAKER, JERAMY A

SEATTLE WA 98178B68-37559
ROMAN CASINOSMARTLOWIT, ROBIN J

KENNEWICK WA 99352B68-26645
DESERT BLUFFS POKER ROOMSMITH, GAVIN J

SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99206-4719B68-37554
BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD ROOMSMITH, JEREMY L

RICHLAND WA 99352-4122B68-37580
JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIESTA  CD RMSTEFFENSON, JOHNATHEN M

KIRKLAND WA 98034B68-13751
CARIBBEAN CARDROOMTADA, SHERI M

YAKIMA WA 98902B68-36159
NOB HILL CASINOTANASSE, MADDISON S

SILVERDALE WA 98383B68-37607
ALL STAR CASINOTHOMPSON, DOMILEE R

SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99206-4719B68-37588
BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD ROOMTHORESON, JULIE E

LA CENTER WA 98629-0000B68-37609
LAST FRONTIERTOOLE, TYLER D

TUKWILA WA 98188B68-35045
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOTRA, NHI Y

LA CENTER WA 98629B68-34147
THE PALACETRAN, HIEN M

RENTON WA 98057B68-37579
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTONTSE, SUI M



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 16 of 31

CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

YAKIMA WA 98902B68-15928
NOB HILL CASINOVALDEZ, ENRIQUE V

MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 98043B68-37584
ACE'S POKERVAN DIEST, ANDREW L

EVERETT WA 98204B68-37624
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/EVERETTVILLELA, PETRUS G

SHORELINE WA 98133B68-11184
GOLDIES SHORELINE CASINOWALKER, LAWRENCE J

LA CENTER WA 98629-0000B68-37598
LAST FRONTIERWARD, JUSTIN M

AUBURN WA 98002B68-37560
IMPERIAL PALACE CASINOWATZKE, KENNETH P JR

TUKWILA WA 98168B68-37630
RIVERSIDE CASINOWHITE, L C  III

MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 98043B68-37157
ACE'S POKERWILLARD, SPENCER C

SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99206-4719B68-26534
BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD ROOMWILLIS, ALAN L

RENTON WA 98057B68-37553
FORTUNE POKERYOO, JONATHAN Y



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 17 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

CHEHALIS CONFEDERATED TRIBES

69-10358
ATKINS, BRENDA A

69-56665
BRAMER, GLORIA L

69-56672
BRAY, THRESIA L

69-56843
CANADAY, PAUL B

69-56664
FIELDS, JUANA

69-56668
HUHTA, SARAH J

69-46363
MC CARTY, MICHAEL P

69-56570
ORTIVEZ, HUNTER A

69-56671
PANAS, CHRISTOS G III

69-56571
PARKER, JADE A

69-56844
PESCI, CAROL A

69-40578
PICKERNELL, DANIKA G

69-56569
RAGAN, ALEXANDRIA L

69-39726
REYES-SANCHEZ, MONICA

69-56666
ROMERO LEON, OCTAVIO

69-56663
SPAETH, HEATHER M

69-56667
SWANTEK, JULIE B

69-10792
TURPIN, MARY L

COLVILLE CONFEDERATED TRIBES

69-56910
AGAPITH, BERNADETTE F

69-56660
ANDERSON, TIGE A

69-50470
BELGARDE, RAESSA A

69-56909
BLANCO, ADAN M

69-56837
BRAUN, VERONICA C

69-56625
FOX, MAKOTI M



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 18 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COLVILLE CONFEDERATED TRIBES

69-56651
GONZALEZ, MARILYN D

69-48391
HARRINGTON, KOURTNEY R

69-56775
JAMESON, DREA N

69-56659
KALAL, SUNSHINE S

69-56836
LYSAIK, TAYLOR N

69-43633
NUNEZ, ANNALYN

69-56712
RODRIGUEZ, NICHOLAS

69-56652
ROPER, ANDREW R

69-56790
SOUVE, CHRISTOPHER J

69-56662
STACY WEIGLE, CHERYL K

69-56658
STRANGER, BRIANNA S

69-56791
TAYLOR, WILLIAM T

69-56774
TIMENTWA, JOHN F JR

69-56907
WAGNER, JOHN D JR

69-34158
WILLIAMS, VANESSA R

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

69-56815
ANDAYA, OSCAR B

69-56782
BAYSINGER, TIFFANY M

69-53598
BECHTOLD, BRIAN E

69-56653
BERKHEIMER, TYLER A

69-56676
BIRAUD, SASHA F

69-56787
BOOSE, CHEYENNE

69-56761
BOYCE, DAVID A

69-56758
BROTHERS, RYAN C



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 19 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

69-56718
BROWN, JASMINE R

69-56590
CAPEL, HUNTER P

69-47755
CHON, DARINA E

69-56780
CLINGERMAN, REECE G

69-56717
COLD, HRODEBERT C

69-56858
D'ANDREA, CAROLINE A

69-56710
DINNOCENZO, ALIAH C

69-56674
DUNCAN, TOMMIE R

69-56859
DUNN, RUTH K

69-41987
DURAND, STEVEN P

69-56616
FATOUT, CHRISTOPHER E

69-56757
FOX, ERRAN R

69-56618
HARLESS, JOSHUA T

69-51972
HIGGINS, RONALD E

69-52567
HILL, KEVIN M

69-56628
HOTTINGER, ALURA L

69-41603
HYATT TANSILL, KRYSTOPHER S

69-56814
JERONIMO, DANIEL A

69-56745
JOHNSON, BREANNA M

69-56768
JOHNSTON, LAYLA B

69-56747
KAVANAGH, DOUGLAS L

69-56655
KINMORE, BRENT A

69-56587
KUYKENDALL, JULIE A

69-56781
LANE, NICHOLAS Q



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 20 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

69-56673
LEE, MICHELE L

69-56833
LOFTESNESS, COLBY D

69-56686
LORN, ISAAC R

69-56709
LUGO, BENNY R

69-56675
MARTINEZ, DEIDRE A

69-56699
MCNABB, CAIDEN R

69-56654
NAVA, SAMUEL S

69-56700
NEAPHEN, NORMAN M

69-42644
NODLAND, CAMERON D

69-50076
OWEN, BENJAMIN T

69-56816
PHAN, THI H

69-56695
PLIEGO HERRERA, JERRY

69-54346
RIGGS, BENJAMIN R

69-56647
ROBERTS, STEPHANIE M

69-56632
SAKRAK, ENGIN KAYA

69-56832
SCOTT, AARON M

69-56679
SHAY, ASHLEY N

69-56835
SPOO, BEAU A

69-35722
STEEN, JEFFREY W

69-56588
TOIVONEN, JUDITH A

69-56580
VALADEZ CORTES, JUAN A

69-56746
VAN SOEST, DAWN D

69-56581
VENABLE, GLYNN H

69-56639
VIZCARRA, IVAN E



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 21 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

69-45287
WARD, KENNETH J

69-56760
WEBB, ZSATIESE M

69-56617
WILLIAMS, AMILLEON S

69-56759
YAHTIN, LUCAS RAY P

69-56756
YI, SAMUEL YOUNG

KALISPEL TRIBE

69-56880
AMRINE, ROY E

69-56602
ARREDONDO, MONIQUE M

69-56817
BIGSMOKE, TIAH S

69-56744
DAVENPORT, BRANDON L

69-56582
DIVERS, SIMON R

69-56681
FIGGINS, BOBBI A

69-33729
HUNT, CHRISTOPHER M

69-56881
KIRK, DEDEE A

69-50946
LAFOUNTAINE, DAWN M

69-56883
MATNEY, ELIJAH O

69-56882
MCGREGER, FELICIA A

69-56601
SELLARS, ZACK M

69-56857
SMITH, TRENT A

69-42547
STOOPS, STEPHANIE L

69-56788
TUAIMALO, ALOFAINA R

69-56680
WELCH, LACI M

69-56818
WRIGHT, MICHAEL T



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 22 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

LUMMI NATION

69-56670
BOBB, ROXANNE S

69-56875
CHAND, RYAN R

69-56825
DALRYMPLE, TRISTAN D

69-53019
FULLER, PATIENCE O

69-56786
GUSTAFSON, LEIF R

69-51833
JOHNSON, KAMRON M

69-56734
JUAREZ, TRISTIN M

69-56629
LIRA, SHELBY M

69-56824
MARSHALL, DEJOHN M

69-56784
PARKER, RONALD C

69-56736
PETROLA, MARIA D

69-56785
RAMSAY, DALTON A

69-56669
SANCHEZ, CITLALI M

69-56783
SANCHEZ, RICARDO D

69-56630
TRUMP, JOSHUA C

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE

69-56693
AMARO, GEORGINA L

69-56867
ASHWORTH, GEOFFREY R

69-56614
BURKS, BRICE D

69-56803
COOK, BRANDON C

69-56613
CROSS, ERIC N

69-56642
FASEKAS, MATTHEW J

69-56584
FERRER, CRISTIANA R

69-56585
FULTZ, JORDAN J JR



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 23 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE

69-42554
GIAUQUE, JORDAN B

69-56842
GODOY, JOSE A

69-56692
GULLA, PRINCESS DIANA M

69-56637
HALEY, PAUL C

69-56612
HEBDEN, LUCAS B

69-56841
JACKSON, RAYMOND A

69-56713
JELLSON, DAVID T

69-56868
KUAHIWINUI, TIARIE E

69-56586
LABAN, PATRICK L

69-51646
LAI, JUNLIN

69-56839
MACK, STEVEN E

69-46636
MARES, ELIZABETH M

69-56807
MARGULLIS, CANDICE A

69-21574
MCGUIRE, YONG C

69-36969
MCINTOSH, VAZHIA S

69-56691
MILLAN-MOSES, CHAD

69-56804
MISENAR, BEATRIX A

69-50171
OEUN, RADTANEY P

69-56644
PENICK, SAIFULLAH G

69-56690
QUITUGUA, SHANE V

69-56641
RENGUUL, JAY M

69-56714
RIZZUTO, JAMES L II

69-22491
SAING, LEANG K

69-56870
SAMUELU, LEILUA I



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 24 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE

69-56643
SAVE, ALDEN J

69-56755
SHOOK, REINHOLD H

69-56840
TEGEGNE, GETENET B

69-56689
THOMAS, KEVIN A

69-22034
THOMPSON, SHEILA M

69-54051
TUILETUFUGA, ELIJAH T

69-56611
UTI, ELIJAH J

69-56753
VERZANI, KYLE J

69-56754
VIENA, JODECI M

69-56715
WEST, AARON W

69-56688
WESTERLUND, RAYMOND T

69-56871
YAHTIN, AGATHA A

NISQUALLY INDIAN TRIBE

69-56810
AKERS, ILEAH M

69-32998
CONKLIN, AMBER S

69-56707
DAVIS, KATIE L

69-56568
DUTCHER, TREY J

69-56649
FORD, LAURA A

69-56583
JORDAN, NOELEE

69-56813
LEBEAU, FRANCES

69-56595
MCCANN, CATHY J

69-56650
NOVAK, LAURA E

69-56906
NYE, CORRINE L

69-56742
REICHERT, ANTHONY T

69-56598
SLEISTER, NICOLAUS W



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 25 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

NISQUALLY INDIAN TRIBE

69-56597
VILLEGAS TREJO, ERI F

69-56697
YAEGGY, GABRIEL E

NOOKSACK INDIAN TRIBE

69-12632
DAVIS, HEIDI L

69-56772
MILLER, DIANE E

PORT GAMBLE S'KLALLAM TRIBE

69-56800
FORD, GERMANY T

69-56798
LAMMI, SKILUR A

69-56799
MANN, DONOVAN L

69-56802
SWARTZ, DEANA C

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS

69-56796
ESTRADA, LATICIA R

69-56684
FLORES, JULIAN E

69-56634
FREER, JUSTIN G

69-27006
GUSTAFSON, WILLIAM C

69-56820
HAECHERL, RYAN S

69-56776
LEINUM, LUCAS M

69-38316
LY, SIPHAY

69-56604
MCCALLUM, LEESA T

69-56645
MCCARLEY, STEVEN C

69-56683
MOODY, MOSES J JR

69-56751
OLESON-BORLAND, TATANIE C

69-56821
RAJU, NATASHA

69-56682
RAMIREZ, MARIA T

69-45132
RAMOS, MARIA C



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 26 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS

69-56698
SAVAII, IOANE  JR

69-56743
SCHAFFER, CALEB S

69-56778
SMITH, JEFFREY G

69-56862
TAYLOR, MICHAEL A

69-56779
TAYON, DALTON M

69-56890
TILLETT, KYLE J

69-56847
TOLLIVER-YIN, CLAYBORN D

69-39853
TRAN, TERESA H

69-56838
TUY, SARINA S

69-15789
WILLIAMS, KEVIN D

SHOALWATER BAY TRIBE

69-56750
BROWN, COLLEEN A

69-10248
MCDONALD, CHRISTOPHER M

69-56748
SCHLAUPITZ, GERALD A

69-56863
SOR, JAYDEN L

SKOKOMISH TRIBE

69-56860
JORDAN, WILFRED A IV

69-56789
PATTERSON, ANDREW A

69-46165
SIMON, DYLAN C

SNOQUALMIE TRIBE

69-56876
ALIX, BENEDICT MOISES T

69-56592
BAJWA, MUHAMMAD A

69-56766
BASS, TIMOTHY R

69-56830
BOULBY, TA-TES S



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 27 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

SNOQUALMIE TRIBE

69-56851
CHEN, LISHAN

69-56829
CHOI, SOO J

69-56593
DAY, RYAN E

69-56762
HAYNEN, JAMES C

69-56723
HULL, RANY

69-56719
HUOT, HUYLIM

69-28124
JACKSON, CURTIS

69-56852
JOLLY, VIOLET J

69-56648
LEE, MARC P

69-48342
LEITIS, LUKAS E

69-56724
LEONARD, RAVEN D

69-52013
LIN, JUMING

69-56877
MA, GUANMING

69-56720
MA, JINYAO

69-56849
MCCULLOUGH, BRANDON R

69-56728
NAKTHONGDEE, WANDEE

69-56763
NGUYEN, NGOC B

69-56765
NGUYEN, THI

69-56721
PASSAMIKA, MARY J

69-56591
PETERSON, MACCLAIN R SR

69-56722
PHAT, PHANNA

69-56704
REDDEST, TRISTIN T

69-56725
SAMBATH, RITHYVONG

69-56831
SIMER, ZACHARY R



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 28 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

SNOQUALMIE TRIBE

69-56850
SPROUL, BRIAN A

69-56727
STEPHENS, STERLING A

69-56827
TRUONG, KENRICK S

69-51027
TSAKIRIS, TORY K

69-56878
WILLIAMSON, LEKISHA A

69-56826
WILSON, DAMIAN R

69-56764
ZARAGOZA, PEDRO L

69-56767
ZHOU, YANAN F

SPOKANE TRIBE

69-56822
ALLERDINGS, COLE F

69-56853
BAGNELL, BLAKE S

69-56619
BORDWELL, KATELYNN M

69-56605
BRATCHER, STEVEN C

69-43920
CHEVALL, TYRONE T

69-56846
CONRAD, ADA M

69-56845
GALVAN, AMBER M

69-56795
GOULD, JAMIE T

69-56696
GWALTNEY, MICHAEL W

69-50755
HUNTER, MIRRISA A

69-43754
MACIAS, CLARISA E

69-56606
OLD SHOES, J P

69-56622
POWDERFACE, LYNNETTE M

69-56687
STENSGAR, WILLIAM J

69-56866
SULLY, JONATHAN M

69-56777
VIVIT, ROBERTO J



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

 

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 29 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

SPOKANE TRIBE

69-56620
WYNECOOP, ISAIAH E

69-38511
YALLUP, RYAN D

SQUAXIN ISLAND TRIBE

69-56631
ARELLANO-VILLEGAS, GABRIELA M

69-56834
BILDSOE, PAMELA K

69-39118
BLUEBACK, BRANDON C

69-56608
DUDAS, LASZLO M

69-56737
GARCIA, GREGORY D

69-56823
JOHNSTON, BRITTNEY D

69-56865
LANNING, CALEB B

69-56633
LUNZMANN, LISA K

69-56640
MENARD, JARED D

69-46745
NICKLE, RANDY W

69-56610
OLSON, IAN M

69-50360
PHILLIPS, TRACIE M

69-56856
PODGORNY, GEOFFREY S

SUQUAMISH TRIBE

69-56609
LASHER, MADILYN E

69-56572
QUACKENBUSH, JOHN R

69-56864
THOMAS, JASON R

69-56624
WILLIAMS, SARAH B

SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNITY

69-28026
EDWARDS, LOREN M JR

69-56792
KROLL, CHARLES A



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 30 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNITY

69-56793
MARTINEZ, CARLOS A

THE TULALIP TRIBES

69-56740
AGAPAY, CHRISTOPHER O

69-56811
ARGUELLES, MARIA ROWENA S

69-50619
BEALS, THOMAS M

69-56678
BURNHAM, KASSANDRA M

69-56600
COFFEY, ETHAN R

69-56539
CONTRERAS VARGAS HOWLETT, OSCAR M JR

69-18428
DUNCAN, BLAIR E

69-10198
ECHEVARRIA, CARLOS R

69-56854
FLORES, KELCEY L

69-38114
HERNANDEZ, JOSE A

69-45480
JEFFERYS, TYLER M

69-56812
JOHNSON, ELIZABETH A

69-56646
LAM, NATHANIAL T

69-04885
MCCLELLAN, MELYSSA D

69-56739
RANDALL, WILLIAM V II

69-24654
RIVEIRA, KANOA K

69-56741
RORAUS SAILER, JESSICA M

69-40942
WALTON, BRANDON C

69-56603
WASHBURN, ISABELLA S



DATE: 04/25/2024

PERSON'S NAME

CERTIFICATION / ELIGIBILITY NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 31 of 31

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

UPPER SKAGIT INDIAN TRIBE

69-56769
ALDRICH, BRIAN J

69-56636
BALDWIN, NICOLAS A

69-56770
DEHOOG, GERRIT D

69-56596
MACKINNON, ZANE J

69-04095
SANFORD, WENDY L

YAKAMA NATION

69-56627
CLEMENTS, LISA M

69-56887
COSTELLO, ANTHONY M

69-56888
CRABB, CODY J

69-56626
DELGADO, JANET

69-56732
DITTENTHOLER, COLE T

69-51947
ICE, MICHAEL C

69-56733
JACKSON, CECIL A

69-56806
MORA GARCIA, BRENDA J

69-56731
OCAMPO, EVENCIO I

69-56730
PERALEZ, RAMIRO

69-56889
PEREZ, ELEAZAR S

69-12345
SALAZAR, DIANA F

69-16371
THOMPSON, MARANDA L

69-56729
ZARAGOZA MENDOZA, MARCO A



HOUSE-BANKED PUBLIC CARD ROOM REPORT

Licensed and Operating  39

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

ALL STAR CASINO Jan 14, 1999 00-18357 67-00058Jun 30, 2024SILVERDALE

BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD ROOM Jan 10, 2013 00-22440 67-00321Sep 30, 2024
SPOKANE 

VALLEY

BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENATCHEE Oct 10, 2002 00-11170 67-00183Dec 31, 2024
EAST 

WENATCHEE

CARIBBEAN CARDROOM Nov 14, 2019 00-24515 67-00343Sep 30, 2024KIRKLAND

CASINO CARIBBEAN Nov 14, 2019 00-24512 67-00341Sep 30, 2024KIRKLAND

CASINO CARIBBEAN Nov 14, 2019 00-24513 67-00342Sep 30, 2024YAKIMA

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD Apr  8, 1999 00-17414 67-00020Dec 31, 2024LAKEWOOD

CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINO Feb 14, 2019 00-24296 67-00339Dec 31, 2024
EAST 

WENATCHEE

COYOTE BOB'S CASINO Jul 10, 2009 00-21848 67-00282Mar 31, 2025KENNEWICK

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLKE TERRACE Jul 10, 2009 00-21849 67-00283Mar 31, 2025
MOUNTLAKE 

TERRACE

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCO Jul 10, 2009 00-21847 67-00281Mar 31, 2025PASCO

DRAGON TIGER CASINO MOUNTLAKE TERRACE Dec 29, 2023 00-22459 67-00315Jun 30, 2024
MOUNTLAKE 

TERRACE

FORTUNE CASINO - LACEY Jul 14, 2022 00-24868 67-00347Mar 31, 2025LACEY

FORTUNE CASINO - RENTON Jan  8, 2015 00-23339 67-00327Sep 30, 2024RENTON

FORTUNE CASINO - TUKWILA Oct  8, 2015 00-23465 67-00329Jun 30, 2024TUKWILA

GOLDIES SHORELINE CASINO May 13, 1999 00-17610 67-00016Dec 31, 2024SHORELINE

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/EVERETT Nov 12, 1998 00-19513 67-00194Dec 31, 2024EVERETT

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA Jan 15, 1998 00-12554 67-00012Sep 30, 2024TUKWILA

IMPERIAL PALACE CASINO Jan  9, 2003 00-19477 67-00192Dec 31, 2024AUBURN

IMPERIAL PALACE CASINO 00-24893 67-00348Mar 31, 2025TUKWILA

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIESTA CD RM Nov 12, 1998 00-15224 67-00006Dec 31, 2024RICHLAND

LANCER LANES AND CASINO Nov 13, 2008 00-21681 67-00276Sep 30, 2024CLARKSTON

Compiled by WSGC Revised 4/25/2024 Page 1 of 3



Licensed and Operating  39

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

LILAC LANES & CASINO Jul 12, 2007 00-21305 67-00267Jun 30, 2024SPOKANE

MACAU CASINO Nov 14, 2019 00-24516 67-00345Sep 30, 2024LAKEWOOD

NEW PHOENIX Oct  6, 2022 00-24981 67-00349Jun 30, 2024LA CENTER

NOB HILL CASINO Sep 12, 2001 00-13069 67-00173Dec 31, 2024YAKIMA

PALACE CASINO LAKEWOOD Dec 26, 2023 00-16542 67-00028Dec 31, 2024LAKEWOOD

PAPAS CASINO RESTAURANT & LOUNGE Aug 13, 1998 00-02788 67-00004Jun 30, 2024MOSES LAKE

RC'S AT VALLEY LANES Nov 16, 2017 00-16220 67-00336Mar 31, 2025SUNNYSIDE

RIVERSIDE CASINO Aug 14, 2003 00-19369 67-00187Jun 30, 2024TUKWILA

ROMAN CASINO Feb 10, 2000 00-17613 67-00057Mar 31, 2025SEATTLE

ROXBURY LANES AND CASINO Nov 18, 2004 00-20113 67-00231Jun 30, 2024SEATTLE

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL CREEK Sep  9, 2010 00-22131 67-00302Jun 30, 2024MILL CREEK

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON Sep  9, 2010 00-22134 67-00305Jun 30, 2024RENTON

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC Sep  9, 2010 00-22128 67-00299Jun 30, 2024SEATAC

SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY Aug 12, 1999 00-16759 67-00038Jun 30, 2024BELLINGHAM

THE PALACE Apr  9, 1998 00-16903 67-00010Jun 30, 2024LA CENTER

WILD GOOSE CASINO Apr  8, 2004 00-20009 67-00212Dec 31, 2024ELLENSBURG

ZEPPOZ Nov 13, 2008 00-18777 67-00209Mar 31, 2025PULLMAN

Licensed but Not Currently Operating  5

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

ACE'S POKER TUKWILA Nov 14, 2019 00-24514 67-00344Sep 30, 2024TUKWILA

EMERALD DOWNS May 11, 2017 00-23814 67-00335Mar 31, 2025AUBURN

LUCKY DRAGONZ CASINO Mar 10, 2022 00-23001 67-00323Jun 30, 2024SEATTLE

ROYAL CASINO Sep  9, 2010 00-22130 67-00301Jun 30, 2024EVERETT

WIZARDS CASINO Feb 11, 2010 00-21998 67-00287Dec 31, 2024BURIEN

Compiled by WSGC Revised 4/25/2024 Page 2 of 3



Applications Pending  1

Commission 

Approval Date Org #
License

#

License

Expiration

DateCity

GRAND CASINO 00-25290 67-00350SHORELINE

Compiled by WSGC Revised 4/25/2024 Page 3 of 3



 CONTACT Julie Anderson (360) 486-3453 
Revised 4/18/2024  Julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov  

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
2024 Commission Meetings Schedule 

 
January 11th & 12th   Gambling Commission Headquarters  
Thursday & Friday  (Hybrid) 
 
February 8th & 9th    Liquor Cannabis Board   
Thursday & Friday  (Hybrid) 
     
March 14th & 15th   Liquor Cannabis Board   
Thursday & Friday  (Hybrid) 
   
*April 25th & 26th   WSGC Headquarters    
Thursday & Friday  (Hybrid) 
 
May 9th & 10th   Liquor Cannabis Board   
Thursday & Friday  (Hybrid) 
       
June   NO MEETING 
 
July 11th and 12th              Liquor Cannabis Board   
Thursday & Friday  1025 Union Avenue SE  
  Olympia, WA  (Hybrid) 
    
August 8th & 9th   Liquor Cannabis Board   
Thursday & Friday  1025 Union Avenue SE  
  Olympia, WA  (Hybrid) 
 
September 12th & 13th   Washington Association of Sheriffs and 
Thursday & Friday   Police Chiefs 

3060 Willamette Drive NE, Lacey, WA 
98516 (Hybrid) 

 
*October 17th & 18th    Washington Utilities and Transportation 
Thursday & Friday   Commission 
  621 Woodland Square Loop SE 
  Lacey, WA 98503 (Hybrid)  
   
November 14th & 15th   Liquor Cannabis Board   
Thursday & Friday  1025 Union Avenue SE  
  Olympia, WA  (Hybrid) 
    
December    NO MEETING 
 
Gambling Commission meetings are typically held on the second Thursday and Friday of the month. Dates 
identified with an * asterisk are scheduled later in the month due to conference schedules.  

mailto:Julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov


 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest. 

 

MAY 9, 2024 

 

TO:  COMMISSIONERS EX OFFICIO MEMBERS   

 Alicia Levy, Chair    Senator Steve Conway  
 Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair  Senator Jeff Holy  
 Bud Sizemore Representative Shelley Kloba  
 Sarah Lawson Representative Eric Robertson 
 Anders Ibsen 
    

FROM:        TINA GRIFFIN, DIRECTOR  

 

SUBJECT:  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Updating the Problem Gambling Signage 
We’ve begun working with the Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling (ECPG), the State  
Problem Gambling Program, the Horse Racing Commission, and the Lottery Commission  
to update the informational signs licensees are required to post per RCW 9.46.071.   
 
It has been many years since we’ve updated these signs.  The plan is: 

• For ECPG to provide the signage information, to include the toll-free helpline 
number and a QR code for a direct link to resources;  

• To print new signs and have all licensees replace existing signage; and 
• To provide the same or similar resource information and links as included in the 

signage on our website.   
 
Indian Gaming Association Tradeshow 
On April 10 and 11, 2024, Commissioner Lawson, myself, and three other staff attended the  
Indian Gaming Association Tradeshow in Anaheim, CA.   
 
Over the course of a day and a half, we visited with over 12 vendors who provide gambling  
equipment or services.  Many of the vendors were licensees.  The vendors demonstrated  
their new products for us, and we answered their questions regarding approval processes,  
rules, laws, licensing, etc.   
 
A new feature of the tradeshow was panel discussions on current trends and topics, such  
as cashless systems.   
 
 



May 9, 2024 
Page 2 
 

4565 7th Avenue SE 
Lacey, WA 98503 
wsgc.wa.gov 

PO Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 
360-486-3440 

901 N Monroe St Suite 240 
Spokane, WA 99201 
509-325-7900 

 

The Indian Gaming Mid-Year Conference and Expo will be at the Tulalip Resort Casino  
September 16 – 18, 2024. 
 
Update on Modernizing our IT Legacy Systems 
We’ve just about completed our business requirement gathering, phase 1.  Our next phase  
is to procure the services of a Quality Assurance (QA) provider and conduct a readiness  
assessment.  The readiness assessment is a state requirement that must be done per the  
OCIO prior to contracting for the procurement of a system solution.   
 
The Readiness Assessment evaluates such things as the agency’s readiness for the project,  
engagement and communication strategy to internal and external stakeholders,  
organizational change management, acquisition planning, and sufficiency and  
commitment of project resources, such as critical subject matter experts, over the life of  
the project.   
 
Procurement of the QA was longer than initially planned because of a new contracting  
process by the Department of Enterprise Services.  To make the most use of the  
approximately 6 to 8 weeks it will take for the QA to complete their assessment, we will be  
reviewing potential product solutions by the vendors on the state contract list.  This will  
help us determine if we can find a possible solution from the approved vendor list.  The  
alternative is to issue a Request for Proposal, which would add at least 4 – 8 weeks to the  
project timeline.   
 
Procuring and Implementing a New Records Management System 
A separate and necessary project we are currently undertaking is to acquire and  
implement a records management system (RMS).   
 
In mid-April, we procured the system.  Soon we will begin the 6-to-8-month journey of  
converting our records to the new RMS.  The records to be converted include those from  
our legacy IT systems, license files, electronic files, and other business and regulatory  
records. We hope to mitigate staff time needed for conversion and implementation by  
getting outside help to scan records into the new RMS since this project overlaps with  
modernizing our IT legacy systems. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
The materials for Tab 3 
will be shared at the 
commission meeting.  



1 

  
 

Tab 4: May 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                                             Statutory Authority 9.46.070 
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

BOLD = Changes made since January 2024 Commission Meeting 
RCW 9.46.070(5) requires the Commission to set fees to generate funds necessary to cover all costs of 
regulation, licensing, and enforcement. 

In 2023, the Commission adjusted license fees for charitable and nonprofit organizations, commercial 
stimulant organizations, and for other businesses. The changes were made to ensure the Commission 
was collecting revenue to support increasing expenditures with no staff increases, i.e., salaries and 
benefits, supplies and equipment, and government services from agencies such as the Attorney General’s 
Office and Department of Enterprise Services. 

In determining the proposed fee change for the 2023-2025 biennium, Commission staff presented an 
adjusted proposal based on revenue needs for the first year of the biennium (FY24) only in an effort to 
reduce the amount of the fee increase. This was done with the expectation that we may have to return in 
a year to revisit fees because it was estimated the revenue increase would not be enough to fully cover the 
increased costs and that we would be relying on our available fund balance to offset the difference. 

Five months of revenue and expenditure data with the fee changes show we are not collecting enough 
revenue to cover all costs of regulation, licensing, and enforcement. Reviewing current anticipated 
expenditures and the Governor's supplemental budget proposal indicates expenditures will continue to 
increase.  
Relying on our excess fund balance to cover increasing expenses is not sustainable. These increasing 
expenses include an indeterminate ongoing cost for software licensing that is the result of our project to 
replace our legacy IT systems, which we anticipate being completed in FY25. We have issued a Request 
for Information (RFI) to the vendor community; estimated ongoing costs are a part of that request. 
Responses to our RFI are due January 15, 2024.  

We will not be making any changes to the sports wagering vendor license fees.  
At the January 2024 commission meeting, Commissioners initiated rulemaking to explore adjusting 
license fees. 

Following a budget presentation at the February 2024 commission meeting, Commissioners expressed 
their concerns about reacting to quickly and wanted to see the first quarter 2024 quarterly license fees, 
which would be presented at the May 2024 commission meeting.  

Staff Proposed Rule Making 
WAC 230-05-160 - Charitable or nonprofit organization fees. 
WAC 230-05-165 - Commercial stimulant organization fees. 

WAC 230-05-170 - Fees for other businesses. 
 

May 2024 – Discussion Only 
January 2024 – Initiate Rule Making 



2 

Policy Considerations 

The current license fees may not be sufficient to cover the agency’s costs of licensing, regulation, and 
enforcement beginning in fiscal year 2025.  

 

Stakeholder and Tribal Partner Feedback 

Prior to the January 2024 commission meeting, staff shared with tribal partners and stakeholders 
concerns of the decline in license fee revenue and sought their input and suggestions. 

 

Prior to the May 2024 commission meeting, staff shared with tribal partners and stakeholders the first 
quarter 2024 quarterly license fee revenue received. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends discussing how to proceed with rulemaking to address license fee increases to cover 
the costs of licensing, regulation, and enforcement based on the first quarter 2024 quarterly license 
fees and fiscal year to date expenditures. 

 



 
 

Tab 5: MAY 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda.                         Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission 

Background 

BOLD - Changes made since the March 2024 commission meeting. 
 
At the April 2023 Commission meeting, Commissioners initiated rule making on problem gambling 
signage other. After reviewing the rules of 18 states and two Canadian provinces, staff prepared the 
attached rule language that, if adopted, would become part of the Commission’s rule chapter that 
applies to all licensees. 
 
This rulemaking aims to address problem gambling by: 

• Requiring licensees to display problem gambling signage at all public entrances and exits to 
the gambling area of the business; in or near the gambling area(s); and in any areas where 
cash or electronic transfers of funds are available to patrons within the designated gambling 
area. 

• Requiring all advertising materials to contain a responsible gambling message.  
• Requiring all advertising, marketing, or promotional materials to include a clear “opt-out” 

method that would allow patrons to unsubscribe from future advertising, marketing, or 
promotional communications.    

In January and February 2024, staff sought feedback on the proposed rule language from: 
• Roxane Waldron, Program Manager of the state’s Problem Gambling program within the 

Health Care Authority,  
• Maureen Greeley, Director of the Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling, and  
• All licensees, except sport wagering vendors and individuals.   

To ensure our tribal partners are informed of agency rule making, we will be providing new rule 
notices and information on feedback sessions for all rules being considered by the Commission.  
 
At the March 2024 meeting, Commissioners filed the proposed rule language for further 
discussion. 
 
Attachment: 

• WAC 230-06-068 
• February 29, 2024, email from Gideon Cauffman, Vice-Chair of the Jamestown S’Klallam 

Tribal Gaming Commission 

 
 

Policy Considerations 

Staff Proposed Rule Making 
New Rule WAC 230-06-068 – Problem Gambling Signage 

 
May 2024 – Final Action 

March 2024 – Discussion and Possible Filing 
April 2023 – Initiate Rule Making 

 



 

As the Commission considers staff-proposed language for a new rule on problem gambling signage, 
Commissioners may want to keep in mind the provisions already contained in statute: 
 

• RCW 9.46.071(b): The Washington state gambling commission, the Washington horse racing 
commission, and the state lottery commission shall jointly develop problem gambling and 
gambling disorder informational signs, which include a toll-free hotline number for 
individuals with a gambling problem or gambling disorder. The signs shall be placed in the 
establishments of gambling licensees, horse racing licensees, and lottery retailers. 

 
• RCW 9.46.072: An entity licensed under RCW 9.46.070(1) which conducts or allows its 

premises to be used for conducting bingo on more than three occasions per week shall include 
the following statement in any advertising or promotion of gambling activity conducted by 
the licensee: “CAUTION: Participation in gambling activity may result in pathological 
gambling behavior causing emotional and financial harm. For help, call 1-800-547-6133.” 
For purposes of this section, “advertising” includes print media, point-of-sale advertising, 
electronic media, billboards, and radio advertising. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Commission take final action on WAC 230-06-068 after holding a 
public hearing with an effective date of 31 days after filing with the Office of the Code Reviser. 



NEW SECTION

WAC 230-06-068  Problem gambling signage and posting require-
ments.  (1) The commission will provide licensees with problem gam-
bling, gambling disorder, and responsible gambling informational 
signs, which include a responsible gambling message and a toll-free 
helpline number for problem gambling and gambling disorders. The signs 
must be conspicuously posted: At all public entrances and exits to the 
gambling area of the business; in or near the gambling area(s); and in 
any areas where cash or electronic transfers of funds are available to 
patrons within the designated gambling area.

(2) All advertising materials must contain a responsible gambling 
message.

(a) Advertising is any notice or communication to the public of 
any information concerning the gambling-related business of the licen-
see through broadcasting, publication, or any other means of dissemi-
nation.

(b) For bingo licensees conducting bingo on more than three occa-
sions per week, advertisements must follow RCW 9.46.072.

(c) The responsible gambling message must include, at a minimum, 
the statement "play responsibly" or similar language and the toll-free 
telephone helpline number for problem gambling and gambling disorders. 
Provided, an alternative to the responsible gambling message would be 
to contain the words "If you or someone you know has been harmed by 
gambling and wants help, call 1-800-GAMBLER."

(3) All direct advertising, marketing, or promotional materials 
must include a clear and conspicuous method allowing patrons to unsub-
scribe from future advertising, marketing, or promotional communica-
tions.

(4) This rule does not apply to major, mid-level, or ancillary 
sports wagering vendors.

[ 1 ] OTS-5248.1



From: Gideon Cauffman
To: Rules Coordinator (GMB)
Subject: Public signage for problem gambling
Date: Thursday, February 29, 2024 11:14:09 AM

External Email

Greetings,

I support the rule change for problem gambling signage. It would be helpful for the entire community of
Washington.

Kind Regards,

Gideon Cauffman
Vice-Chair
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribal Gaming Commission

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:gcauffman@gmail.com
mailto:rules.coordinator@wsgc.wa.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tab 6: MAY 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda.                      Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

BOLD = Changes made since March 2024 Commission Meeting 

Staff suggests amendment of WAC 230-06-046, or the creation of a new rule, related to additional 
requirements for licensed business premises of nonhouse-banked, Class F, and house-banked card 
rooms. The rule currently establishes conditions under which card rooms cannot be adjacent to 
each other. Staff believes that there is a need to further clarify under which limited conditions 
nonhouse-banked, Class F, and house-banked card rooms can be adjacent to each other. 
 
Staff developed clarifying language to ensure that adjacent card rooms operate as separate and 
distinct licensed business premises.  Staff also determined that this rule is more appropriately 
located in Chapter 230-03, which relates to pre-licensing procedures, rather than in Chapter 230-
06 detailing rules for all licenses.  To accomplish this movement between chapters, the 
Commission needs to adopt a new rule in Chapter 230-03, which is a revised version of the old rule.  
The old rule would then be repealed on an expedited basis as redundant.  Attached is the current 
WAC 230-06-046, the proposed new rule (WAC 230-03-182), and the filing for a repeal of WAC 
230-06-046. 
 
At the January 2024 commission meeting, Commissioners: 

• Authorized staff to initiate rulemaking on an expedited basis for repeal of WAC 230-06-046 
once the new WAC 230-03-182 became effective and  

• Filed WAC 230-03-182 for further discussion with additional language to subsection 3 to 
further identify adjacent cardrooms licensed as of July 1, 2018, are not bound by the 
requirements.   

At the March 2024 commission meeting, Commissioners: 
• Authorized staff to refile the amended rule language striking the last sentence in 

subsection 2, which states, “The provisions of subsection (1) of this section will take effect 
upon the issuance of a new license.” 

Attachments: 
• WAC 230-06-046  
• Revised WAC 230-03-182 as filed.  
• Repeal of WAC 230-06-046 

Staff Proposed Rule Making 
New Rule 

WAC 230-03-182 Additional requirements for nonhouse-banked, Class F, and 
house-banked card rooms. 

Repeal 
WAC 230-06-046 – Additional requirements for licensed business premises of 

nonhouse-banked, Class F, and house-banked card rooms. 
 

May 2024 – Final Action 
March 2024– Discussion and Possible Filing 

February 2024- Discussion 
January 2024 – Discussion and Possible Filing 

October 2023 – Initiate Rule Making 
 

     
    

      
       



 

 

Public Feedback 

On January 15, 2024, we received an email from Vicki Christopherson with proposed rule language 
they would like Commissioners to consider.  See attached email and proposed rule language with 
their comments. 
 
At the Commission meeting on February 8, 2024, Eric Persson stated that he believes the amended 
rule language is unconstitutional and is a violation of his fifth amendment rights. 
 
Attachment: 

• Email from Vicki Christopherson on January 15, 2024 

Policy Considerations 
 
In 2010, the Commissioners authorized card rooms licensed prior to the effective date of the rule, 
to be adjacent to each other regardless of the physical attributes of the buildings into perpetuity.   
   

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends taking final action on the rule as presented after the rules hearing with an 
effective date of 31 days after filing with the Code Reviser. 



WAC 230-06-046  Additional requirements for licensed business 
premises of nonhouse-banked, Class F, and house-banked card rooms. 
(1) The licensed business premises of nonhouse-banked, Class F, and 
house-banked card rooms may not be adjacent to each other if each li-
censed business premises:

(a) Shares inside public access between the two licensed business 
premises; or

(b) Has employee access between the two licensed business prem-
ises visible to the public; or

(c) Shares windows or similar structures that allow customers to 
see into the other licensed business premises.

(2) Subsection (1) of this section does not apply to nonhouse-
banked, Class F, and house-banked card room physical locations that 
have any of the features listed in subsection (1) of this section and 
were licensed on the effective date of this rule.

(3) Adjacent card rooms must post signs at each entrance that is 
accessible by the public to clearly notify customers of the licensed 
business premises' identity.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 18-05-029, § 230-06-046, filed 
2/9/18, effective 7/1/18. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 
9.46.0282. WSR 10-07-102, § 230-06-046, filed 3/19/10, effective 
7/1/10.]

Certified on 2/20/2023 WAC 230-06-046 Page 1



NEW SECTION

WAC 230-03-182  Additional requirements for nonhouse-banked, 
Class F, and house-banked card rooms.  (1) The licensed business prem-
ises of nonhouse-banked, Class F, and house-banked card rooms may not 
be adjacent to each other unless:

(a) Each is a fully separate and distinct licensed business prem-
ises; and

(b) There is a solid wall, with no internal access, between the 
two premises; and

(c) Each licensed business premises must operate as an independ-
ent commercial stimulant as defined in RCW 9.46.0217.

(2) Subsection (1) of this section does not apply to nonhouse-
banked, Class F, and house-banked card room physical locations that 
have any of the features listed in subsection (1) of this section and 
were licensed as of July 1, 2018.

(3) Adjacent card rooms must post signs at each entrance that is 
accessible by the public to clearly notify customers of the licensed 
business premises' identity.

[ 1 ] OTS-5132.3



REPEALER
The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is 

repealed:
WAC 230-06-046 Additional requirements for licensed 

business premises of nonhouse-banked, 
Class F, and house-banked card rooms.

[ 1 ] OTS-5133.1



From: Vicki Christophersen
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Jason Bacigalupi; Eric Persson
Cc: Davies, Brooke; Mentzer, Damon (GMB)
Subject: Adjacent card room rule
Date: Monday, January 15, 2024 11:26:31 AM
Attachments: Proposed WAC 230-03-182 - Revised - with explanatory comments.docx

External Email

Good morning Tina and Damon, 

Thanks for the robust conversation during the commission meeting last week. We appreciate
the willingness to clarify the issues surrounding this rule. 

It was difficult to track the changes in real time and we are not sure that the language
amendments discussed actually accomplish what we believe was the goal. To that end we have
attached the approach we would prefer to the proposed rule and look forward to further
discussions with you. 

Thanks!

Vicki Christophersen
Christophersen Inc.
www.christopherseninc.com
360.485.2026

mailto:vicki@christopherseninc.com
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:jason.bacigalupi@maverickgaming.com
mailto:ep@maverickgaming.com
mailto:brooke.ella.davies@gmail.com
mailto:damon.mentzer@wsgc.wa.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.christopherseninc.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cdamon.mentzer%40wsgc.wa.gov%7C2a68e5405c9244da150c08dc15ffc736%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638409435902767040%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ULE%2Fsp5VgeRGJCvaazEEpGkh179fR%2B07kW8UJZ8Ks94%3D&reserved=0

NEW SECTION



WAC 230-03-182  Additional requirements for nonhouse-banked, Class F, and house-banked card rooms. (1) The licensed business premises of nonhouse-banked, Class F, and house-banked card rooms may not be adjacent to each other unless:

(a) Each is a fully separate and distinct licensed business premises; and

(b) There is a solid wall, with no internal public access, between the two premises, and that no employee access between the two premises is visible to the public; and	Comment by Jason Bacigalupi: The existing rule prohibits public access between the two premises, but also allows for employee access between the two premises, so long as it is not “visible to the public” - this change keeps this consistent.

(c) Each licensed business premises must operate as an independent commercial stimulant as defined in RCW 9.46.0217.

(2) Subsection (1) of this section does not apply to nonhouse banked, Class F, and house-banked card room physical locations that are adjacent to each other have any of the features listed in subsection (1) of this section and were licensed on the effective date of this rule. The provisions of subsection (1) of this section will take effect upon the issuance of a new license.	Comment by Jason Bacigalupi: This language is from the existing rule - which prohibits adjacent locations from having certain features – however, the new rule, rather than prohibiting features, requires that adjacent locations have certain features. This change clarifies that difference - otherwise - as written, existing licensed adjacent card rooms would not be grandfathered unless they “have any of the features listed in subsection (1)”.  	Comment by Jason Bacigalupi: It is unclear what the intent of this is because the provisions of subsection (1) would be effective upon the effective date of the rule - so including an additional section that triggers the effectiveness of the requirements on the issuance of a new license is confusing.  

(3) Adjacent card rooms must post signs at each entrance that is accessible by the public to clearly notify customers of the licensed business premises' identity.





NEW SECTION 

 
WAC 230-03-182  Additional requirements for nonhouse-banked, 

Class F, and house-banked card rooms. (1) The licensed business 
premises of nonhouse-banked, Class F, and house-banked card rooms 
may not be adjacent to each other unless: 

(a) Each is a fully separate and distinct licensed business 
premises; and 

(b) There is a solid wall, with no internal p ub l i c access, 
between the two premises, and that no employee access between the 
two premises is visible to the public; and 

(c) Each licensed business premises must operate as an 
independent commercial stimulant as defined in RCW 9.46.0217. 

(2) Subsection (1) of this section does not apply to nonhouse- 
banked, Class F, and house-banked card room physical locations 
that are adjacent to each other have any of the features listed in 
subsection (1) of this section and were licensed on the effective 
date of this rule. The provisions of subsection (1) of this section 
will take effect upon the issuance of a new license. 

(3) Adjacent card rooms must post signs at each entrance that 
is accessible by the public to clearly notify customers of the 
licensed business premises' identity. 

 

Commented [JB1]: The existing rule 
prohibits public access between the two 
premises, but also allows for employee 
access between the two premises, so long 
as it is not “visible to the public” - 
this change keeps this consistent. 

Commented [JB2]: This language is from the 
existing rule - which prohibits adjacent 
locations from having certain features – 
however, the new rule, rather than 
prohibiting features, requires that 
adjacent locations have certain 
features. This change clarifies that 
difference - otherwise - as written, 
existing licensed adjacent card rooms 
would not be grandfathered unless they 
“have any of the features listed in 
subsection (1)”.   

Commented [JB3]: It is unclear what the 
intent of this is because the provisions 
of subsection (1) would be effective 
upon the effective date of the rule - so 
including an additional section that 
triggers the effectiveness of the 
requirements on the issuance of a new 
license is confusing.   



 

  
 

Tab 7: May 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                                             Statutory Authority 9.46.070 
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

The Washington State Gambling Commission has been working to replace the current legacy IT systems 
since March 2023 in an effort to modernize technology. As we approach implementation of the new IT 
systems, commission staff has identified several chapters of WAC Title 230 that will need to be updated. 
These rule changes will correspond to the new capabilities of the new IT system and allow for more 
efficient processes for staff, licensees, and applicants. For example, the new IT systems will allow for 
electronic submission of documents, electronic notification, and electronic service of documents.  

These rule changes will likely affect several different WAC chapters, including but not limited to 
permitting and licensing rules (230-03), fees (230-05), rules for all licensees (230-06), fund-raising 
event rules (230-09), bingo rules (230-10), and hearing rules (230-17).  

 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends initiating rule-making proceedings necessary to address changes associated with IT 
modernization.  

 
 

 
Staff Proposed Rule Making 

New, Amended, and Repealed Rules 
WAC Title 230 

 
May 2024 – Initiate Rule Making 



1 

  
 

Tab 8: May 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                                    Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

RCW 9.46.070(1) – (4) authorizes the Commission to issue licenses for a period not to exceed one year to: 
• a bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization,  
• an organization operating a business primarily engaged in the selling of food or drink for 

consumption on the premises,  
• an organization operating or conducting amusement games, and 
• organizations engaged in the manufacturing, selling, distributing, or supplying of devices, 

equipment, software, hardware, or any gambling related service set fees to generate funds 
necessary to cover all costs of regulation, licensing, and enforcement. 
 

Currently, organizational licenses expire at the end of a quarter, depending on when their license was 
initially approved.  In June 2023, the Commission adjusted annual license fees for charitable and 
nonprofit organizations, commercial stimulant organizations, and for other businesses. This was the 
first time the license fees had been adjusted since being implemented in 2018.  Licensees began paying 
the adjusted license fees when they renewed their license. 
 
Because of the quarterly expiration of organizational licenses, it took nine months before all 
organizational licensees began paying the adjusted license fees.  More importantly, it currently takes 13 
months from the implementation of the rule change for all licensees to be subject to the adjusted Gross 
Gambling Receipts Rate and 22 months (April 30, 2025) to receive a full year of revenue from the adjusted 
rates. This makes it extremely challenging to forecast cash flow and collect adjusted license fees in a 
timely manner.    
 
Staff are proposing that we initiate rulemaking to align all organizational license expiration dates to June 
30th.  This will aid in revenue forecasting as well as simplify implementation and communication to 
licensees when adjusting license fees in the future.   
  
Rulemaking would take the form of amending existing rules and/or adding additional rules to WAC 
chapters 230-03, 230-05, and/or 230-06.  
 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends initiating rulemaking to align organizational license expiration dates.   

 

Staff Proposed Rule Making 
New, Amended, and/or Repealed Rules to Align Organizational License 

Expiration Dates in: 
 WAC Chapter 230-03 Permitting and Licensing Rules and  

WAC Chapter 230-05 Fees  
WAC Chapter 230-06 Rule for all licensees 

 
May 2024 – Initiate Rule Making 



 

  
 

Tab 9: MAY 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                                  Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

BOLD = Changes made since March 2024 Commission Meeting 
 
At the November 2023 Commission meeting, Commissioners asked staff to work with stakeholders to 
determine if rulemaking could address recent stakeholder concerns regarding the minimum cash on 
hand requirements for house-banked card rooms.  

Currently, our rules require house-banked card game licensees to have sufficient cash on hand to 
redeem all chips issued for play and pay out all prizes. Failure to keep funds to cash in chips, pay prizes, 
or redeem gambling related checks is prima facie evidence of fraud (WAC 230-15-050). 

To ensure that house-banked card game licensees have sufficient cash on hand to redeem all chips for 
play and pay out all prizes, we require, by rule, house-banked card rooms to have a minimum amount of 
cash on hand based on a formula: 

• At least $1,000 for each house-banked table on the gambling floor, plus 
• The amount of the largest single prize available, excluding progressive, player-supported, and 

house jackpot prizes. 

Staff has found that the formula to calculate “sufficient cash on hand to redeem all chips issued for play and 
pay out all prizes” may not be adequate for all house-banked card game licensees.  Rulemaking is needed 
to address staff’s concerns as follows: 

• Some house-banked card rooms have had difficulty cashing out players’ chips at the cashier’s 
cage even though they met our minimum cash on hand requirements.  These were cases where a 
player did not win a large prize, but were rather cashing out a large amount of chips from 
winning multiple smaller hands.  

• It is rare for players to win large prizes in the tens of thousands of dollars at house-banked card 
rooms.  Rather, general day to day operations in house-banked card rooms involves multiple 
players purchasing chips at tables and then redeeming chips at the cashier’s cage.  Card rooms 
generally maintain cash in the cashier’s cage based on the volume of gambling in their facility, 
not based on the potential for someone to win a rare large prize. 

• Consistency with other states.  Other states minimum cash on hand requirements are based on 
volume of gambling, rather than a single large prize that may or may not be won.  For example, 
the Nevada Gaming Control Board’s calculation for minimum cash on hand is a per table 
requirement plus 1% of gross gaming revenue (volume) from the last fiscal year.  The National 
Indian Gaming Commission has the same calculation as Nevada for minimum cash on hand. 

• In 2023, wager limits were increased from $300 to $400.  Players are now able to buy more chips 
for play, and in turn, card rooms may have to redeem more chips at the cashier’s cage.  The 
minimum cash on hand formula should address this potential greater influx of gaming. 

Staff Proposed Rulemaking 
New Rules 

WAC 230-15-190 Paying out odds-based and fixed based prizes 
 WAC 230-15-195 Keeping funds to pay fixed-based prizes  

Amend 
WAC 230-15-050 Minimum cash on hand requirements. 

 
May 2024 – Discussion and Possible Filing 

March 2024 – Initiate Rulemaking 



 

• The “largest single prize” offered by almost every card room in the state is an odds-based prize 
that has an aggregate payout limit attached to it according to WAC 230-15-490.  For example, a 
card room that offers a game that has 8000-1 odds and $400 wagering limits can limit the prize 
to $20,000 according to WAC 230-15-490.  The $20,000 aggregated prize becomes the “largest 
single prize” according to the formula in WAC 230-15-050.  This was the same “largest single 
prize” amount in 2008 when the wagering limits were only $200.   

 
Staff has also found that rules only allow house-banked card game licensees to write checks for 
progressive jackpots, player supported jackpots, and house jackpots.  Current rules do not specifically 
authorize checks to be written for large odds-based and fixed-based prizes (e.g. the prizes in Masque’s 
card game).   
 
At the March 2024 commission meeting, Commissioners authorized initial rulemaking to amend WAC 
230-15-050 and create new rules. 
 
The proposed rules: 

• Require card game licensees to exchange chips for cash unless the player requests payment by 
check;  

• Changes the formula for determining the minimum amount of cash required to be in the cage, 
safe, and/or vault for house-banked card rooms;  

• Allows for specific prizes to be paid by check; and 
• Require house-banked card room licensees to have sufficient funds to pay fixed-based prizes 

offered. 
 
Attachments: 

• WAC 230-15-050 
• WAC 230-15-050 (Revised) 
• Proposed rules WAC 230-15-186 and WAC 230-15-187 

 

 

Public Feedback 

Eric Persson, owner of Maverick Gaming, spoke at the March 14, 2024, commission meeting. Mr. 
Persson expressed his concern regarding potential safety risks associated with staff members and 
winning players handling a large amount of cash.   
 
Commission staff held a public feedback session on April 16, 2024, where several individuals 
expressed support for changes to minimum cash on hand requirements due to potential safety risks 
that a large amount of cash may present to both cardroom staff and the players.    
 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends filing the attached rule language for further discussion. 



WAC (4/15/2024 07:48 AM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 

WAC 230-15-050  Minimum cash on hand requirements.  (1) 

Card game licensees must have sufficient cash on hand to redeem 

all chips issued for play and pay out all prizes. 

(2) Within three hours of opening for the business day, at 

a time included in the internal controls, house-banked card game 

licensees must have at least the following minimum amount of 

cash on premises in their cage, safe, and vault combined: 

(a) One thousand dollars for each house-banked table on the 

gambling floor; plus 

(b) The amount of the largest single prize available 

excluding progressive jackpot, player-supported jackpot, and 

house jackpot prizes. 

For example: If a house-banked card room has 15 house-

banked tables and a largest single prize of $23,000, before 

opening, the cage must have at least $38,000 on hand: 15 

tables x $1,000 = $15,000 + largest single prize of $23,000 = 

$38,000. 

(3) Except for the restrictions on player-supported jackpot 

pay outs in WAC 230-15-405 and progressive jackpot pay outs in 



WAC (4/15/2024 07:48 AM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 

WAC 230-15-690, licensees may pay prizes by check if sufficient 

funds are available on deposit. 

(4) Failure to keep funds to cash in chips, pay prizes, or 

redeem gambling related checks is prima facie evidence of fraud. 

Meeting the minimum cage cash amount does not relieve the 

licensee from the requirement to have sufficient funds available 

to redeem all chips and pay out all prizes. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 22-01-182, § 230-15-050, 

filed 12/20/21, effective 1/20/22; WSR 09-03-024 (Order 640), § 

230-15-050, filed 1/9/09, effective 2/9/09; WSR 07-23-081 (Order 

620), § 230-15-050, filed 11/20/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-09-

033 (Order 608), § 230-15-050, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] 



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 22-01-182, filed 12/20/21, effective 
1/20/22)

WAC 230-15-050  Minimum cash on hand requirements.  (1) Card game 
licensees must have sufficient cash on hand to redeem all chips issued 
for play ((and pay out all prizes)). Licensees must exchange chips 
brought to the cashier's cage by players for cash; however, the licen-
see may write a check for the balance of chips redeemed, but only at 
the request of the player. Licensees must issue the check within 24 
hours.

(2) Within three hours of opening for the business day, at a time 
included in the internal controls, house-banked card game licensees 
must have at least the following minimum amount of cash on premises in 
their cage, safe, and/or vault combined:

(a) ((One)) Two thousand dollars for each house-banked table on 
the gambling floor; plus

(b) ((The amount of the largest single prize available excluding 
progressive jackpot, player-supported jackpot, and house jackpot pri-
zes.)) One percent times card room gross gambling receipts from the 
previous calendar year according to quarterly license reports submit-
ted to the commission; however, a new house-banked card room who has 
not yet submitted a full calendar year of quarterly license reports 
must have at least $30,000 for the purpose of this subsection.

For example: If a house-banked card room has 15 house-banked ta-
bles and ((a largest single prize of $23,000, before opening, the 
cage)) their gross receipts were $4,000,000 in their previous calendar 
year, they must have at least (($38,000)) $70,000 cash on hand: 15 ta-
bles × (($1,000)) $2,000 = (($15,000)) $30,000 + ((largest single 
prize of $23,000 = $38,000)) 1% × $4,000,000 = $40,000.

(3) ((Except for the restrictions on player-supported jackpot pay 
outs in WAC 230-15-405 and progressive jackpot pay outs in WAC 
230-15-690,)) Licensees may pay specific prizes by check if sufficient 
funds are available on deposit and they meet the restrictions in the 
rules below:

(a) WAC 230-15-405 - Player-supported jackpot prizes.
(b) WAC 230-15-690 - Progressive jackpot prizes.
(c) WAC 230-15-673 - House jackpot prizes.
(d) WAC 230-15-190 - Odds-based and fixed-based prizes.
(4) Failure to keep funds to cash in chips, pay prizes, or redeem 

gambling related checks is prima facie evidence of fraud. Meeting the 
minimum cage cash amount does not relieve the licensee from the re-
quirement to have sufficient funds available to redeem all chips and 
pay out all prizes.

[ 1 ] OTS-5382.1



NEW SECTION

WAC 230-15-186  Paying out odds-based and fixed-based prizes. 
(1) House-banked card room licensees must immediately pay out all in-
dividual odds-based and fixed-based prizes of $5,000 or less.

(2) For individual odds-based and fixed-based prizes over $5,000, 
licensees must immediately pay out a minimum of $5,000 and pay the re-
maining balance within 24 hours by check. The player may request that 
the licensee pay up to the entire prize balance by check. Licensees 
must then issue a check for the entire prize balance within 24 hours.

NEW SECTION

WAC 230-15-187  Keeping funds to pay fixed-based prizes.  House-
banked card room licensees must not offer a fixed-based prize to be 
won by a player if they do not have sufficient funds to pay the prize. 
Licensees must maintain at least the amount of the single largest 
fixed-based prize offered in a bank, mutual savings bank, or credit 
union located in Washington. Alternatively, licensees may maintain the 
amount of the single largest fixed-based prize in cash on the licensed 
premises.

[ 1 ] OTS-5385.1



 

  
 

Tab 10: May 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                                       Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commissioners 

Background 

At the commission meeting on November 16, 2023, Commissioner Julia Patterson requested that the 
Gambling Commission evaluate WAC 230-06-025 (restrictions on firearms as prizes) to ensure the rule 
is in accordance with SHB 1240 (prohibiting manufacturing, importing, distributing, or selling assault 
weapons). Commissioners expressed concern that nonprofit and charitable organizations in 
Washington are able to award assault weapons as raffle prizes, which may conflict with SHB 1240 
aiming to prevent the selling and manufacture of assault weapons in the State.  
 
Commissioners had further discussion on the topic at the January and February 2024 commission 
meetings.  
 
At the February 2024 meeting, Commissioners agreed to initiate rulemaking to change WAC 230-06-
026 to ensure the law is in line with other state statutes and bring it more in line with how these raffles 
are actually being conducted in Washington State:  

• Limit the certificate to be redeemable by a licensed firearm dealer to a Washington State 
dealer.  

• Limit the firearms that are available as prizes to only those firearms that are authorized 
for sale in Washington State. Amended language would clarify this point.  

• Prohibit persons who are not permitted to own firearms in Washington from winning a 
firearm in a raffle. Additional language to the rule is needed to ensure such prohibited 
individuals are not able to acquire a firearm as a raffle prize.   

 
 
  Attachments: 

• WAC 230-06-025 
• WAC 230-06-025 (revised)  

 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends filing the attached amended rule for further discussion.  

 
 

 
Staff Proposed Rule Making 

Rule Amendment 
WAC 230-06-025 – Restrictions on firearms as prizes 

 
May 2024 – Discussion and possible filing 
February 2024 – Initiate Rule Making 



WAC (3/25/2024 07:38 AM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 

WAC 230-06-025  Restrictions on firearms as prizes.  Only 

charitable or nonprofit organizations operating a raffle may 

award firearms, air guns, or other mechanical devices which are 

capable of discharging dangerous projectiles, including but not 

limited to, BB or CO2 guns, rifles, shotguns, pistols or 

revolvers, or crossbows as a prize. If the prize awarded is 

restricted from transfer by state or federal law, the licensee 

must award the winner a certificate, redeemable by a licensed 

firearms dealer, for the prize offered. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 

230-06-025, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 



WAC (3/25/2024 07:38 AM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 

WAC 230-06-025  Restrictions on firearms as prizes.  Only 

charitable or nonprofit organizations operating a raffle may 

award firearms, air guns, or other mechanical devices which are 

capable of discharging dangerous projectiles, including but not 

limited to, BB or CO2 guns, rifles, shotguns, pistols or 

revolvers, or crossbows as a prize. The firearm must be 

authorized for sale in Washington State. If the prize awarded is 

restricted from transfer by state or federal law, the licensee 

must award the winner a certificate, redeemable by a licensed 

Washington State firearms dealer, for the prize offered. 

Alternatively, the winner shall be awarded a prize of equivalent 

value, such as a gift certificate, if the winner of the raffle 

is prohibited from owning or possessing firearms by other 

sections of the RCW.  

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 

230-06-025, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 



 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest. 

 

MAY 9, 2024 

 

TO:  COMMISSIONERS EX OFFICIO MEMBERS   

 Alicia Levy, Chair    Senator Steve Conway  
 Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair  Senator Jeff Holy  
 Bud Sizemore Representative Shelley Kloba  
 Sarah Lawson Representative Eric Robertson 
 Anders Ibsen 
    

FROM:        TINA GRIFFIN, DIRECTOR  

 

SUBJECT:  POTENTIAL 2025 AGENCY REQUEST LEGISLATION MEMO 
 
While the 2024 legislative session recently concluded, we must begin to prepare for the  
2025 legislative session.  Below is a timeline if the agency has legislation it would like to 
move forward in 2025:  
 
Date    Action 
May 9  Discuss possible agency request legislation topics during 

public meeting. 
 
June 3  Feedback meeting with tribal partners and public to share 

possible agency request legislation topics. 
 
July 11 and 12 During public meeting Commissioners determine what agency 

request legislative topics staff will prepare to submit to the 
Governor based on feedback from tribal partners and the 
public feedback session. 

 
August 8 and 9 During public meeting Commissioners provide feedback on 

draft language and packet materials for proposed agency 
request legislation. 

 
September 12 and 13  During public meeting Commissioners vote on agency request 

legislation materials to send to Governor for approval. 
 
Some topics we are considering for 2025 agency request legislation include changes  
to: 



May 9, 2024 
Page 2 
 

4565 7th Avenue SE 
Lacey, WA 98503 
wsgc.wa.gov 

PO Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 
360-486-3440 

901 N Monroe St Suite 240 
Spokane, WA 99201 
509-325-7900 

 

 
• RCW 9.46 Gambling Act 
• RCW 42.56 Public Records Act  
• RCW 49.44.240 Discrimination based on cannabis use – Exceptions 

 
At the May commission meeting, we’ll share more information about the specific changes  
and gather the Commissioner’s thoughts on potential legislative changes for 2025.   

 
 
 
 
 


	May 2024 Commission Packet
	May Agenda
	Tab 1 Stillaguamish proposed compact amendments
	Tab 2 March minutes
	Tab 2 April minutes
	Tab 2 License report
	Tab 2 Commission meeting schedule
	Tab 2 Directors report
	Tab 3 Placeholder for Budget Update
	Tab 4 Rule for discussion only, Fee Increase
	Tab 5 Final action, problem gambling signage
	Tab 6  Final Action, Adjacent card rooms
	Tab 7 Staff initiate rule making, Polaris rules
	Tab 8 Discussion and Possible Filing, Firearms as a prize
	Tab 9 Discussion and Possible filing, minimum cash on hand
	Tab 10 Discussion and Possible filing, Firearms as a prize
	Tab 11 ARL



